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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

In the Matter of: E. R.
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Elizabeth A. Brown
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raymond.mckay@]libertymutual.com

JOHN BLACKMON, 111, ESQ.
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Suite 350
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703 S. Eighth Street
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(702) 386-0030

Attorney for Philip and Regina Rivera
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attorneys@millsnv.com
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT Electronically Filed
FAMILY DIVISION - JUVENILE 07/29/2015 04:05: 14
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA'

Date of Birth: 06.15.2015 Age: 0 yrs. 01 month DEPT. NO.: JUVENILE
‘ COURTROOM: D
Natural Mother’s Name: Nellie Saez
Natural Father’s Name: Pedro Rodriguez
R DDY ER

This matter having come before the Court on July 29, 2015, for a protective custody hearing
pursuant to NRS 432B.470 and NRS 432B.480. Present in Court for the hearing were Martha Cardiel of|
the Department of Family Services, Deputy District Attorney Abbie Frierson, and Nellie Saez and Pedro
Rodriguez, and based on the statements made and the report that was submitted:

THE COURT FINDS that the mother of the child is Ms. Nellic Sacz who has named Pedro
Rodriguez as the biological father of the child; that she was and is married to Troy Melendez.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the above-named father, Pedro Rodriguez, is listed on
the child’s birth certificate.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that:

_X__aninquiry was made into whether the Indian Child Welfare Act applies to this family and
the parents denied that there is any Native American heritage.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Ms. Saez and Mr. Rodriguez have been advised of their
right to be represented by an attorney and their right to present statements regarding the protective
custody of the child. -

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS there is reasonable cause fo betieve that it would be contrary
to the welfare of the child to remain at her home. Specifically, the Court finds that there are concerns of|
honielessness, drug abuse by natursl father and meciical incapacity by natural mother. On July 26, 2015,
natural mother suffered a seizure while walking with the natural father and child. Natural mother was
transported to UMC for medical care. Naturat father, whose response to the seizure was to spray water

In the Matter of: m t é l
ESTHER RODRIGUEZ CASENO.: J-15-3 CLERK®DF THE COUR
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on natural mother, appeared to be under the influence of a controlled substance. There are no relatives in
Nevada or friends in Las Vegas willing to provide for the minor child, Natural father later admitted to
use of conwrolled substances, reportedly heroin. Natural mother has medication for her seizures »but
rgportedly is “pa;‘anoid” of taking pills and doss not follow the doctor’s orders.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS the child was placed in protective custody on July 27, 2015,

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the child

_X__ should remain in protective custody pending a disposition of the Court;

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Clark County Department of Family Services
provide for the placement, care and supervision of the above-named subject minor.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the following reasonable efforts have been made to
prevent the removal of the child: A Safety and Risk assessment has been completed.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that visitation between Ms, Saez and Mr. Rodriguez with the
cluld shall be supervised by the Department of Family Services.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that the natural mother/father be assessed and submit to drug
testing. '

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Clark County Special Public Defenders’ Office be
appointed to represent the natural mother, and Maria Avilez, Esq., be appointed to represent the natural
father and a CAP attorney be appointed to represent subject minor. |

TT IS FURTHER ORDERED that copies of the Protective Custody Report be transmitted to the
attorneys appointed in this matter and that the attorneys maintain the confidentiality of the report and, if|
they are unable to confirm as an attorney of record in this case at the plea hearing that the report be
destroyed or returned to the Court.

ITIS MTHER_ORDERED that a PLEA is set for August 6, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. in Courtroom
14.

Dated: July_29, 2015. 6 ‘ f‘ﬁ_

ROBERT W. TEUTON, ABUSE/NEGLECT
DISTRICT JUDGE-JUVENILE DIVISION

-2- . 0002
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27 ] Higreby certify thet on the above stamped date, Tplaced o copy of thie foregoing in the fdldet(s)
of Attomey(s):

Abbie Frierson, DDA

Special Public Defender, attorney for natural mothet, NeJlie Saez
Maria Avilez, attorney for natural father, Pedro Rodrigyé
CAP, attorney for subject minor '
in the Office of the Clerk of the Court.

y Wi
Judicial Executive Assistant

3. 0003




Electronically Filed
08/05/2015 02:35:05 PM

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT (X304 b S

ST FAMILY DIVISION - JUVENILE . CLERK OF THE COURT
o CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA ' '
-In the Matter of Child:
ESTHER RODRIGUEZ . DOB: 06-15-2015 | COURT CASE NO.: J- 15-337308-P1
| UNITY CASE # 1407636 |

DEPT.: FAMILY JUVENILE
_ | COURTROOM: HM KURTZ - #14

A Minor Under 18 Years of Age. PETITION: 1 - ABUSE/NEGLECT
‘ PLEA: 08-06-2016 AT 9:00 A.M.

PETITION - ABUSE/NEGLECT

4 Thé Petitioner, a duly appointed and qualified Deputy District Attorney for the County of
Clark, State of Nevada, makes the following declaration:

There is now living or found within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, a minor child
whose residence addrese is: UNKNOWN

MOTHER: NELLIE SAEZ DOB: 03-17-1972
FATHER: PEDRORODRIGUEZ DOB: 06-26-1978

The Petitioner is informed and believes, and therefore on information and belief alleges,
that the facts bringing the subject minor within the jurisdiction of the Juvenile Court are:

The subject minor is a child in need of protection and this action is within
the jurisdiction of the Court pursuant to N.R.S. 432B, et sec., in that:

(@) The mother to the minor child is NELLIE SAEZ the father is PEDRO
RODRIGUEZ;

(b) NELLIE SAEZ and PEDRO RODRIGUEZ were the persons directly
_responsible for the welfare of the subject minor pursuant to NRS
432B.130 at the time of removal;

(c) PEDRO RODRIGUEZ neglected the subject minor by engaging in
the use of illegal substances, which rendered him unable to provide
care for the subject minor when NELLIE SAEZ suffered a medical
incident that likewise renderad her incapable of caring for the subject
minor; PEDRO RODRIGUEZ admitted to regularly using illegal
substances, and named heroin as his drug of choice;

(d) PEDRO RODRIGUEZ lacks the resources to provide for the health

0004




and safety of the subject minor;

(e} PEDRO RODRIGUEZ failed to submit-to drug testing that was
recommetdad by both CPS and the court;

{(HNELLIE SAEZ lacks the resources to provide for the health and
safety of the subject minor;

{g) NELLIE SAEZ failed to submit to drug testing that was
recommended by botht CPS and the court;

{h) The subject minor is in need of protection in accordance with NRS
432B.330 as.a result of the abuse/meglect described above.

Therefore, Petitioner prays that: upon the admission folor proving of this
Patition, or any part thereof, the subject minor be declared a Ward of this
Honorable Court.

The minor is in protective custbdy, having been placed there by the Department of
Family Services.

THEREFORE, your Petitioner prays that this matter be set for hearing to determine the
need for protection of the minor and for the Court to take such further action as is deemed fit
and proper under the circumstances and in accordance with the law concerning protection of
childien, :

| declare that | am the Patitioner named in the foregoing Petition and know the contents
thereof; that this petition is true of my owri knowledge, except as to those matters stated on
information and belief, and that as to those matters | believe them to be frue. | declare under
penalty of perjury that the foregaing is true and correct.

Dated this 5" day of August, 2015

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
DISTRICT AT\%ORN&Y —

L N\
. \ N
BY: \‘ » X"M';%\M»w a Mt

L,

’Beput District Attorney

Petitioner

UNITY Doc.

JH/pf

- GRS Central B

PC Held '
Removal Date: 07-27-20156
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J-15-337398-P1 i

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Juvenile Protection COURT MINUTES September 03, 2015

J-15-337398-P1 Saez, Nellie, Mother | | ’

|September 03, 2015/1:30 PM | Adjudicatory Trial |

|[HEARD BY: | Kurtz, Thomas G. |COURTROOM: |Courtroom 14 |

PARTIES: ;'
State of Nevada: Attorney: Hanrahan, Janne M |
Mother: Saez, Nellie Attorney: Oliver, Melissa

' ' Attorney: Special Public Defender
Father: Rodriguez, Pedro : Attorney: Perez Avilez, Maria A
Not Present: Rodriguez, Esther Attorney: Children's Attorney
Project ' .

'[COURT CLERK: Jjulie Richmond |

L - “JOURNAL ENTRIES

- (Esther Rodriguez) Department of Family Services (DFS) represented by
Martha Cardiel. Children's Attorney Project (CAP) represented by Eunice
Beattie, Bar #10382.

Court noted this matter is set for trial today.

Ms. Oliver stated Mother will enter a NO CONTEST plea to the Petition filed on O
8/5/15. Ms. Oliver further stated, as to placement, the District Attorney wants
Mother to stay where she is at for a minimum of two weeks to show some
stability, Mother shall do a substance abuse assessment and as long as her levels
are going down they will consider her as placement for the child.

Ms. Avilez stated Father will also enter a NO CONTEST plea to the Petition filed
on8/5/15 W1th no amendments.

Court canvassed the parents and explained the parent's rights. Court
ACCEPTED the parent's pleas of NO CONTEST to Petition 1 as written.

Following statements, COURT RECOMMENDED Matter set for DISPOSITION
as to the parents. :

0006



115-337398-P1

FUTURE HEARINGS:

09/29/2015 10:00 AM Disposition Hearing
Mother -
Courtroom 11 Teuton, Robert W.

01/26/2016 1:30 PM Review Hearing
Courtroom 14 Kurtz, Thomas G. »

l
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J-15-337398-P1

DISTRICT COURT

— CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Juvenile Protection COURT MINUTES October 06, 2015
J-15-337398-P1 Saez, Nellie, Mother
[October 06, 2015 [10:00 AM | Disposition Hearing I
[HEARD BY: [Teuton, Robert W. [COURTROOM: |Courtroom 11 - |

PARTIES:

State of Nevada: Attorney: Madden, Mary-

Margaret _ - ,

Not Present: Saez, Nellie Attorney: Oliver, Melissa

Not Present: Saez, Nellie Attorney: Special Public

Defender '

[COURT CLERK: |Rosa Ardesch |

| JOURNAL ENTRIES ]

- Deputy District Attorney Mary Margaret Madden, present.

(Esther Rodriguez} Department of Family Services (DFS) represented by Martha
Cardiel. '

~ Special Public Defender (SPD) Melissa Oliver, present on behalf of Nellie Saez
{(not present). v

Following statements, COURT FINDS and ORDERED:
Case Plan as to natural mother Nellie Saez is accepted and adopted as submitted.

Subject minor was previously DECLARED A WARD OF THE COURT; LEGAL
CUSTODY to the Department of Family Services. Review Hearing STANDS.

FUTURE HEARINGS: 01/26/2016 1:30 PM Review Hearing
‘ Courtroom 14 Kurtz, Thomas G.
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Tanner Sharp :
Deputy District Attorney

* Juvenile Division
Nevada Bar No. 13018
601 North Pecos
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 455-5320 '

In the Matter of:

ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ
Date of Birth: 06-15-2015

Age

A Minor, 1 Years and 01 Month(s) of

Electronically Filed

08/11/2016 03:04.13 PM

Q@:.u!sﬁww

= ; CLERK OF THE COURT

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION - JUVENILE
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

COURT CASE NO.: J-15-337398-P1
DEPT.: FAMILY JUVENILE
COURTROOM: HM NORHEIM - #14

OUT-OF-HOME PLACEMENT ORDER - Licensed Foster Home

This matter having come on for Permanency and Placement Review befare the
amily Court, Eighth J;ldicial District, County of Clark, State of Nevada, Clark Couhty-
epartment of Family Services, on this 2 day of August, 2016, with parent(s) NELLIE
AEZ being present in Court, and subject minor(s) being available to the Court, and- thel

32B.580, 432B.590, and 432B.600, and good cause being shown;
THE COURT FINDS that continuation of the minor(s) .in tﬁe 'home of the
arent(s)lguardian(s), NELLIE SAEZ, is contrary to the welfar_e of the child(ren);
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that reasonable efforts have been rﬁade as cited

emoval of the child(ren) from NELLIE SAEZ home;

10of4

ourt finding that the minor(s) come(s) within the prdvislons of NRS 432B.410, 432B.550,

| the Permanency and Planning Review Report to prevent or eliminate the need for -

0009
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| THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that reasonable efforts have been made as cited
in the Permanency and Planning Review Report to make If possible for the child(ren).to
tum to the home of NELLIE SAEZ; accordingly. |

IT IS HEREBY RECOMMENDED that ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ iS( |
"contlnued as a Ward of the Family Court as a child in Need of Protection;
IT 1S FURTHER RECOMMENDED that Iegél custody remains with the Clari

ounty Department of Family Services for placement until ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ

ach(es) the statutory age as prescribed by law, or until further Order of the Court,
ontrol and custody ié awarded with all necessary authority and power to furnish, provide,
d authorize care and services to the subject minor(s) as may seem necessary and
roper, and in the child(ren)’s best interest and welfare, including but not limited to: food,
othing, shelter,' education, and routine medical care and treatment;

mis FURTHER RECOMMENDED that the Clark County Department of Familyf
ervices shall have legal authority to access and obtain any recOfds that relate to thq
hild's well being to include but not limited to: medical, dental, educational, mental heaithW
nd substance abuse

1T IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that the Permanency Plan goal of Adoption asJ
eéommended by the Clark County Department of Family Services is in the chlld(ren)j
.est inie'rest and shall be adopted by the Court,

1] IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that continuation of reasonable efforts to
unlfy ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ with NELLIE SAEZ, as required by NRS

328.393 is not consistent with the Permanen_cy Plan;
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y the Clark"County Department of Family Services tM%t the permanency goal are

reasonable efforts:

IR o

7.
8.
9.

10. The Depariment coordinated DNA testing with patemal relatlves and ESTHER.
~11.The Department located a potential adoptive resource as to ESTHER.

hstodian(s) nor the parent(s) may remove the subject mmor(s) from the State of Nevadaj
ithout the written consent of the Clark County Department of Family Services or by«
rder of the Court

IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that the following efforts that have been mad%

The Department referred MS. SAEZ to Drug Tests.

The Department referred MS. SAEZ to a Substance Abuse Assessment.

The Department attempted to coordinate visitation as to MS. SAEZ and ESTHER.
The Department attempted to maintain contact with MS. SAEZ.

The Department conducted a Diligent Search as to MS. SAEZ.

The Department conducts announced and unannounced home visits to ensurﬁ
ESTHER’S safety and well-being and that her needs are being met.

The Department provided Medicaid for ESTHER.
The Department ordered medical records for ESTHER.

The Department contacted paternal relatives regarding a posslble ICPC as to
ESTHER.

IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that sibling visitation is not applicable;
IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that:
Child Support is waived;

[] Child support is ordered in the amount of $ : fovf

per child;

IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED_. that the ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ i

laced i an a licensed foster home.

IT IS FURTHER FOUND AND RECOMMENDED that neither the physica

3of4 0011
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{Family Juvenile.

|after receipt of the Referee s Findings and Recommendations.

IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that this matier be reviewed on the "X~

You are hereby notified that you have a right to a rehearing pursuant to Eighth

Judicial District Court Rule 1.46. An application for rehearing must be filed within five days

” i {‘ 2 X. 3
Dated this sk ___ day of Loty vt 2016
. W ,f;*
{ TOVENIIE HEARDIE W NORHEIM
IT 15 50 ORDERED. S f
Dated this ____"2. __ day of Py vy 201
arye.. N
DISTRI®T JUDG JUVEN!LE ¢
SHARLES & HOSKIN
Submitted by: : Submitted by:
. STEVEN B. WOLFSON
o (_,f"' N ) DiSTRiCTATTORNEY
\- i{.‘. $ "\“'i‘“f P fg ™ i :»‘.e’{l;‘ ": x‘i‘-’"‘i M":}. P
%i( LN Lo o LA S gy "gm\g
KRISTINA QUINLAN  / Deputy Diétfttsf Attomey
CASE MANAGER AN

DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES
COURT CASE NO.: J-15-337398-P1

Hay seevicios gratis de syuds con oo idiomas. Fara pudir ). mluprw. flawne por favor af Coovdinadoy
de Servicing e Yudrprotes al 477-4578,

Pree Tunguage gssistance serviees are availahle, To request an {nterprotec. piease vl Ui Langusge
Agsistance Cnoclinator at #4578,

4 of 4 : _ 0012




D-16-541838-R

DISTRICT COURT
' CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Termination of Parental Rights COURT MINUTES January 12, 2017
- State _ : ‘

D-16-541838-R In the Matter of the Parental Rights of:
Esther Rodriguez,
Minor(s). - ' '
January 12, 2017 : 10:00 AM . Hearing for Termination of
' Parental Rights
HEARD BY: Norheim, Jon COURTROOM: Courtroom 14

COURT CLERK: Lillian Hillhouse o
PARTIES:  Petitioner: State of Nevada Attorney: Barrett, Joseph Thomas.

JOURNAL ENTRIES

(Esther Rodriguez) Department of Family Services (DFS) represented by Kristina Quinlan.
COURT NOTED that the minor's attorney was not present. -

Atty. Kimberly Abbot, of the Children's Attorney Project, made an appeérance and inquired as to
- whether or not the minor's attorney received notice of today's hearing.

DA Barrett advised it is unknown whether or not he received notice. DA Barrett requested to proceed”
with prove up as to the mother, John Doe, and any and all putative fathers.

Kristina Quinlan SWORN IN and TESTIFIED.

COURT FINDS, the State has met its burden by clear and convincing evidence. The best interest of

the subject minor would be served by termination of parental rights as they are in an adoptive
placement. Grounds as to the mother are failure of parental adjustment, token efforts, and

~ abandonment. Grounds as to John Doe and any and all putative fathers is abandonment. COURT

RECOMMENDED), the Petition to Terminate Parental Rights shall be GRANTED as to Respondent

mother, Nellie Vega Saez, Respondent father, John Doe, and any and all putative fathers. Minor's

attorney shall sign off on the order. The State shall file the Order.

PRINT DATE: | 01/13/2017 Page1of1 Minutes Date: January 12, 2017

Notice: Journal entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the official record of the Court.
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| In the Matter of the Parental Rights as to )
) .
ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ, ) Case No. D-16-541838-R
) Department Dependency 1
A Minor. ) Courtroom 14 ~ HM NORHEIM
‘ )

|t file herein, The State has met its burden by clear and convmcmg evidence, and the Court, being fully

PFFRI® ! ' Electronically Filed
STEVEN B. WOLFSON . 02/18/2017 09:39:17 AM
District Attorney

Nevada State Bar No.1565 ... . cn
By: JOSEPH BARRETT * m b s |
Deputy District Attorney : \ v
Juvenile Division - CLERK OF THE COURT '
Nevada Bar No. 13450 '
601 N. Pecos
Las Vegas, NV 89101
(702) 455-5320

DISTRICT COURT

FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

"ok

. FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW,
! . AND OQER TERMINATING PARENTAL BlGHT

The above-entifled matter came on for a Termination of Parental Rights hearing before the Court
on the 12¢h day of January, 2017. Present at the hearing' were the Petitioners, the Dep&Ment Qf Family
Services (DFS), by and through Case Manager Kristina Quinlan, and Clark Cfbunty District Attorney
STEVEN B. WOLESON, by and through his Deputy District Attorney, JOSERH BARRETT. The parties
whose parental rights were the subject of the Petition failed to appear either personally or throuigh an
attorney. All notices requxred by law and orders of this Coust were served as proved by the pleadings on

advised in the premises on the facts and the law, makes its Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and final

Oder as follows: . .

FINDINGS OF FACT

: 1 |

The Court has jﬁrisdiction of the subject matter involved and of the parties.
. | 11 e

ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ was born on June 15, 2015, in Les Veggé,‘daﬂ'c County,

Nevada. . ' . L,
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ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ currently ‘resides in fo_s‘,tgr} «care_in Clark County, Nevada,

{! licensed by the Clark County Department of Family Services.

v

'ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ was adjudicated a neglected child and made a Ward of the
Eighth Judiéial Cdurt, Juvénile Division, in Cas¢ No. J-15-337398—Pi , and placed‘into the custody of
the Department of Family Services. ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ was placed into physical custody
on July 27, 2015 and the Clark County Department of Family Services has maintained legal custody of
ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ since September 15, 2013. | |

N v |

The birth certificate for ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ, issued by the State of Nevada -
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, Vital Statistics
lists the mother’s name as NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, and no father's name is listed. It is unknown if
NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ,
aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka
CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ was married at the time of the birth of ESTHER

|| BELLA RODRIGUEZ. The mother named PEDRO RODRUGIEZ as the father of ESTHER BELLA

RODRIGUEZ. The alleged paternal grandparents, LEONOR MUNOZ MERAZ and EPIFANIO
RODRIGUEZ ALVAREZ, submitted to genetic testing and the results concluded that they are ot thie
biological grandparents of ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ, since they lack genetic markers that must
come from the biological parents of the alleged fa&xe;, the proiaability being 0.00%. No persoq is the}
legally presumed, legal of putative father of ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ. The true identity of the
natural father of ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ ié unknown and he will be referred to as JOHN DOE|

from herein.

VI
NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA
SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE-SAEZ,

2 0015
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|| purpose to forego all parental custody and relinquish all claims to this child. Further, since the period of

"||SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka

|| aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIESAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA

{NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka.MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ has

aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOHN DOE, and all other persons claiming
paternity are necessary and proper parties to these proceedings.
o v
As defined in NRS 128.012, NELLIE VBGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIEC SAEZ,
aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY
SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOHN
DOE, and all other persons claiming pétemity have a_bandoned ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ, in that

for at least the last six (6) months, they have conducted themselves in a manner that evinces a settled

abandonment is in excess of six (6) months, it is presumed that NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE
SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, dka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka
NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA
GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOHN DOE, and all other persons claiming paternity intended to abandon
ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ.
vio
Pursuant to NRS 128.105(1)(b)(4), NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C

NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARJA GAYTAN TALLEZ has
failed within a reasonable period of time to remedy substantially conditions which led to ESTHER
BELLA RODRIGUEZ’s out-of-home placement, even though appropriate and reasonable efforts have
been made on the part of state agencies and others to return and to reunite NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka
NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ,

GAYTAN TALLEZ with ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ.
IX
Pursuant to NRS 128.105(1)(b)(6), NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C
SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka
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made only token efforts to suppott or communicate with ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEL, to prevent
neglect of this child; to auoid.._heing'an unfit parent and to eliminate the risk of serious physigal, r_r_;ghtal
and emotional injury to this child. ' |
) ' |

Pursuant to NRS 128.105 (1), 128.107 and 128.109, the best interests of ESTHER BELLA
RODRIGUEZ will be served by terminating the parental rights of NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE
SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka
NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA
GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOHN DOE, and all other persons claiming paternity. |

XI
. Any finding of fact construed to constitute a conclusion of law is hereby adopted as a ﬁonclusion of
law to the same effect as if it had been so designated.
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
The Court has jurisdiction of the subject matter and of the parties pursuant to NRS 128.020.
I
_ NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA
SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, ska NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ,
aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ is the natural mother of ESTHER BELLA
RODRIGUEZ. |
I |

As defined in NRS 128.012, NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ,
aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY
SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOHN
DOE, and all other persons claiming paternity have abandoned ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ, in that
for at least the lést six (6) months, they have conducted themselves in a manner that evinces a settled
purpose to forego all parental custody and relinquish all claims to this child, Furfher, since the period of
abandonment is in excess of six (6) months, ii 1s presumed that NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE
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SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka

|INELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA| . ..

GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOHN DOE, and all other persons claiming paternity intended to abandon

{|ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ

v
Pursuant to NRS 128.105(1 )(b}(4), NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C
SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, ake NELLIE VEGA, aka
NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ has
failed within a reasonable period of time to remedy substantially conditions which led to ESTHER
BELLA RODRIGUEZ’s out-of-home placement, even though appropriate and reasonable efforts have
been made on the part of state agencies and others to return and to reunite NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka
NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ,
aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA
GAYTAN TALLEZ with ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ
vV
" Pursuant to NRS 128.105(1)(b)(6), NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C
SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, zka
NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aké CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ has
made only token efforts to support or communicate with ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ, to prevent
neglect of this child; to avoid being an unfit parent and to elimix}ate the risk of serious physical, mental
and emotional injury to this child.
VI
Petitioner haé proved by clear and convincing evidence that the interests of EST.HER BELLA
RODRIGUEZ would be best served by the termination of the parent-child relationship absolutely and |
forever and that parental fault exists. '
vII _
Petitioner ha§ proved by clear and convincfng evidence that NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE
SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka
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NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA
GAYTAN TALLEZ is an unsuitable parent based -on-abandonment, failure of parental adjustment and
token efforts. Petitioner has proved by clear and convincing evidence that JOEN DOE énd all other
persons claiming paterhity‘are unsuitable parents based upon abandonment, |
) v

The parental rights of NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, gka
NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ,
aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOEN DOE, and all
other persons claiming paternity should be terminated, and the minor child should be declared free from
the custody, care and control of the parents. |

D( .

Any conclusion of law construed to constitute a finding of fact is hereby adopted as a finding of

fact to the same extent as if it had been so designated.
'ORDER AND DECREE

In view of the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the parental rights of NELLIE VEGA SAEZ,| -

aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ, aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C

|| VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA,
1| aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOHN DOE, and all other persons claiming patemity are terminated

i absolutely and forever; it is further

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ is declared
free from the custody and control of NELLIE VEGA SAEZ, aka NELLIE SAEZ, aka NELLIE C SAEZ,
aka NELLIE CAROLINA SAEZ, aka NELLIE C VEGASAEZ, aka NELLIE VEGA, aka NELLY
SAENZ, aka NELLLIE SAEZ, aka CAROLINA VEGA, aka MARIA GAYTAN TALLEZ, JOHN DOE,
and all other persons claiming paternity; it is farther 7

ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the custody and control of ESTHER BELLA
RODRIGUEZ is vested in the Department of Family Services of the Statelof Nevada with authority to

place the minor child for adoption; it is further

-6- ' " 0019
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ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the County of Clark pay the costs and expenses

in-connection_with, this. proceeding. particularly including the costs of publication of notice heretofore

Eighth Judicial District Court of Nevada, Juvenile Division.
,2017.

Dated this day of

Dated this day of

Reviewed and Approved by:

By:
RAYMOND McKAY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 8569
Attorney for minor child

Submitted by:

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
District Attorney

By:_ ﬁ
JOSEPH BARRE

Deputy Disfrict Attorney
Juverile Division
Nevada Bar No. 13450
601 N. Pecos Road, #470
Las Vegas, NV 89101
(702) 455-5320

IBftrr

‘|| ordered by this Court and such Findings of Fact and Recommendations are hereby made an Order of the

;2017

JUVENILE HEARING MASTER

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
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i ORDERED, ADJUD GED AND DECREED that the County of Clatk pay the cosﬁs and expenses

4, 2 |lin conmection with this proceeding parficulady including the costs of publwnhon of notlce ‘hetetofore

: 3 [{ ozdered by this Court and such Findings of Fact and Recommiendations ate hereby made an Order of tlie
4 || mighth Tudiclal District Cout of Nevad, Juvenile Division.

‘ . Dated this A¢_dayof_Fhewwry 2017, /-—\\

. ' JONN

A Dated this _We dayof___Tletvw ,2017. ' -

|9' | . Ay XY

10 ﬂ DISERICFCOURT JUDGE .

i)} | ' ' i

ol Reviewed and Approved by:

sl LA U\@ U\[\IU\/\./

} | By: ; ‘ ' .

|4 il RAYNIOND McKAY, ESQ.

sl NevadsBagNo. 8569

I Attomey for minor child

16( v

-H*‘; | ‘

il

Submitted by:

==l
[ &)

e
-]

)

N—N—=

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
District Attorney'

By: ?{‘ﬁ{
. JOSEPFLBARRET

Deputy District Attorney
Juvenile Division
Nevada Bar No. 13450
681 N. Pecos Road, #470
Las Vegas, NV 89101
{702) 4555320
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LARK COUNTY ' ; Electronically Filed

EPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES 01/30/2017 12:42:1

121 SOUTH MARTIN LUTHER KING BLVD. -

AS VEGAS, NEVADA 89106 ' - : C el ®
702) 455-7200 | m 4 L

0PM
.

Mt

CLERK OF THE COURT

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION - JUVENILE
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

' In the Matter of:
ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ

Date of Birth: 06-15-2015
A Minor 1 years, 07 Months of Age

COURT CASE NO.: J-15-337398-P1
DEPT.: FAMILY JUVENILE

| REPORT FOR PERMANENCY AND PLACEHEI_“ REVIEW

Date of Hearing: 02-07-2017

Time of Hearing: 01:30 PM
Courtroom: HM NORHEIM - #14

‘Attachment:
CONCERNING; '

Mother. NELLIE SAEZ
DOB:  03-17-1672
Address: Unknown

Fatherr UNKNOWN
DOB:
Address: -

* The Department learned in October 2016 that ESTHER has a half-sibling in
Siblings: the adoption process in California. ESTHER may have additional half-
.siblings; their locations are unknown.

The Indian Child Welfare Act does not apply.
[ The indian Child Welfare Act does apply.
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NOTIFICATION OF HEARING AND TYPE OF SERVICE

Mother:

Not Applicable

Father(s): = =~ Not Applicable
Current Placement.  Via email and certified mail January 24, 2017

CASA:

- Not Applicable

Child’s Attorney: Via email and certified mail January 24, 2017
Mother's Attorney: ~ Not Applicable
Father's Attorney:  Not Applicable

Tribe: Not Applicable
REMOVAL DATE:

July 27, 2015

TRIAL HOME VISIT DATES:

Not Applicable

REASON FOR CUSTODY AND COURT JURISDICTION (formally known as

Wardship):
Petition No. 1 in this Matter cited:

(a) The mother to the minor child is NELLIE SAEZ; the
father is PEDRO RODRIGUEZ;

(b} NELLIE SAEZ and PEDRO RODRIGUEZ were the
persons directly responsible for the welfare of the

- subject minor pursuant to NRS 432B.130 at the time of

removal;

(c) PEDRO RODRIGUEZ neglected the subject minor by .

engaging in the use of illegal substances, which
rendered him unable to provide care for the subject
minor when NELLIE SAEZ suffered a medical incident
that likewise rendered her incapable of caring for the
subject minor; PEDRO RODRIGUEZ admitted to regularly
using illegal substances, and named heroin as his drug
of choice;

(d) PEDRO RODRIGUEZ lacks the resources to provide
for the health and safety of the subject minor;

(¢) PEDRO RODRIGUEZ failed to submit to drug testing

that was recommended by both CPS and the court;

(f) NELLIE SAEZ lacks the resources to provide for the

health and safety of the subject minor;
(g) NELLIE SAEZ failed to submit to drug testing that

~ was recommended by both CPS and the court; -

(h) The subfect minor is in need of protection in accordance with
NRS 432B.330 as a resuit of the abuse/neglect described above.

2
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PREVIOUS COURT QRDER DEEMED EFFORTS BY THE DEPARTMENT
TO ACHIEVE THE PERMANENCY PLAN:

[ Were Reasonable Efforts -~ ... For: ESTHER RODRIGUEZ
[0 Were Not Reasonable Efforts For: '
E NENCY GOA PROJECTED DATE OF AC!
[ Reunification With: '
X Termination of Parental Rights and Adoptlon By. Current Foster Placement
[[] Guardianship By:
] Long Term Relative Placement With:
[] Other Planned Permanent Lwlng © With:
Arrangement '

Projected Date of Achievement:
CONCURRENT PERMANENCY GOAL:

Reunification With:
[[] Termination of Parental Rights and Adoptlon By:
L] Guardianship By:
[ Long Term Relative Placement With:
[[] Other Planned Permanent Living With:
Arrangement : '

RATIONALE FOR PERMANENCY PLAN:

ESTHER has been in care since July 27, 2015. MS. SAEZ' parental rights and
the rights of all potential fathers were terminated January 12, 2017. ESTHER
has resided in her current foster placement since September 9, 2016. This
placement is an adoptive resource.

A ' PROGRESS:

Vigitation

MS. SAEZ' parental nghts were tetminated January 12, 2017.

Housing ‘
MS. SAEZ’ parental rights were terminated January 12, 2017.

Employment

- MS. SAEZ’ parental rights were terminated January12 2017.

| Counseling

MS. SAEZ’ parental nghts were terminated Januaw 12 2017.

| Parentlng

MS. SAEZ pa‘rental rights were terminated January 12, 2017,

Other

The Department was- contacted by MS. SAEZ’ first cousin regarding possible
placement of ESTHER in her home. An ICPC was submitted December 8, -
2016 to the State of Georgia. The results are still pending.

3.
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Safety

CHILD(RENY'S CURRENT PLACEMENT:

ESTHER is placed in a licensed DFS Foster Home. She has resided in this
placement since September9,:2018:- She appears bonded to her foster
parents and comfortable in the home.

This placement is not within close proximity to the parent(s) for ESTHER

'BELLA RODRIGUEZ

This placement is the least restrictive for ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ.

CHILD(REN)'S WELL BEING:

Education

ESTHER is not of school age. She attends daycare at Kiddie Academy
Mondays through Fridays from approximately 8:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m. each day.

Placement

ESTHER is placed in a licensed DFS Foster Home. She has res;ded in this
placement since September 9, 2016. She appears bonded to her foster
parents and comfortable in the home. This placement is an adoptive resource.

Emotional/Counseling

ESTHER is not in need of counseling sefvices at this tame ESTHER has a
good temperament. She is a happy and loving child. ESTHER does appear to
have a slight delay in speech and a referral to Nevada Early Intervention
Services (NEIS) was submitted January 23, 2017.

Medical/Dental

- ESTHER'S medical needs are met at Positively K|ds Her immunizations are

current and she has no ongomg medical concerns at this time.

The Depariment conducts announced and unannounced home visits to
ESTHER'S foster care placement at least every thirty days. The Department
completes Permanency Services Placement Safety Checks and currently has
no concerns with regards to ESTHER'S current placement. .

Psychiatric Services - : _
Is the child listed in report currentiy on any psychotroplc medxcatlon?

No
Has a Court appointed a person to be legally responsible for the child's
psycniatric services?
Not Applicable
. When was the child's last appointment?  Not Applicable
- When will the child have an appointment? Not Applicable

4
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SIBLING CONTACT:

[ 1 Placed Together

D4 Not Placed Togsther — The Department leamned-in October 2016 that
ESTHER has a half-sibling in the adoption process in California. ESTHER may
have additional half-siblings; their locations are unknown.

Il REASO T$ TO ACHIEVE THE PERMANENCY P

“Reasonable Efforts have been made in order to achieve Permanency for
ESTHER. These efforts include the following:

" On behalf of the parents:
1. The Parental Rights were termmated January 12, 2017.

On behalf of the child(ren):

1 The Department conducts announced and unannounced home visits at
least every thirty days to ensure ESTHER'’S safety and well being and that
her needs are being met.

The Department provided Medicaid for ESTHER.

The Department ordered ESTHER'S medical records.

The Department updated ESTHER’S Social Summary.

The Department submitted an ICPC as to ESTHER'S maternal cousin.

The Department referred ESTHER to Nevada Early Intervention Services
(NEIS).

7. The Department maintains contact with ESTHER'S caregivers between in-
person visits to monitor her progress in placement and assist with referrals
as needed. '

o ok W

GOALS FOR THE NEXT REVIEW PERIOD:

1. The Department will continue to conduct announced and unannounced
home visits to ensure ESTHER'S safety and well- belng and that her needs
are being met. '

2. The Department will continue to order medical records and perform Soclal
“ ~ Summary updates as to ESTHER.

3. The Department will continue to make needed referrals for services for
- ESTHER.

4. Permanency will be established for ESTHER.

0026




|
]l M\mm__,__wm
ESTHER was brought in to care July 27, 2015 and placed in Protectlve
|| Custody.due-to-concems of abuse and neglect. ESTHER has resided in her

I current foster placermnent since September 9, 2016. This placement is an
adoptive resource. MS. SAEZ' parental rights and the rights of all potential

fathers were terminated January 12, 2017, The Depariment was contacted by
ESTHER'S maternal cousin in October of 2016 and an ICPC as to the cousin
was submitted December 8, 2016. The results of the ICPC are still pending.

The Department respectfully recommends that ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ
remain a Ward of the Court and placed in her current foster placement.

CHILD SUPPQRT.
Not Applicable

- R T~ N ¥ S S SR

10 || WHEREFORE, DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES RESPECTFULLY
| RECOMMENDS:

1 (1) That ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ remain under the jurisdiction

12 : of the Family Court and in the legal custody of the Clark County

' Department of Family Services;

13 (2) That the efforts made by the Depariment of Family Services are”

found to be reasonable efforts as outlined in this report;

14 (3) That this: ma_ltter be brought back for Formal Review in six months.

15 |

16 Submitted By:

17 e o ‘
KRISTINA QUINLAN  / o TARYN LAAISON 1

19 | CASE MANAGER SUPERVI -_!-
20 || CLARK COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES
21 “ '

22 || DATE: January 30, 2017 )
COURT CASE NO.: J-15-337308-P1

3 “ SITE: Central Perm F
24 '
25
26
27
28
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Electronically Filed
02/07/2017 _

Il sTEVENB. WOLFSON : » CLERK OF THE COURT
DISTRICT ATTORNEY ' ) o ‘

Tanner Sharp .

“ Deputy District Attorney
Juvenile Division

Nevada Bar No. 13018

601 North Pecos

|| Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

(702) 455-5320

| EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
il FAMILY DIVISION - JUVENILE
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of:

ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ " | COURT CASE NO.: J-15-337398-P1
Date of Birth: 06-15-2015 DEPT.: FAMILY JUVENILE

A Minor, 1 Years and 07 Month(s) of COURTROOM: HM NORHEIM - #14
Age.

OUT-OF-HOME PLACEMENT ORDER - Licensed Foster Home

This matter having come on for Permanency and Placement Review before the

amily Court, Eighth Judiciak District, County of Clark, State of Nevada, Clark County

Department of- Family Services, on this 7 day of February, 2017 with parent(s) NELLIE] '
AEZ not being present in Court, and subject minor(s) being available to the Court, and

he Court finding that the minor(s) come(s) within the provisions of NRS 432B.410,
32B.550, 432B.580, 432B.590, and 432B.600, and good cause belng shown;

l THE COURT FINDS that continuation of the minor(s) in the home of thet

Farent(s)/guardian(s), SAEZ, NELLIE , is contrary to the welfare of the child(ren);
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_ THE COURT FURTHER_ FINDS that reasonable efforts have been made as cited in

the Permanency and Plannmg Review Report to prevent or. ehmmate the need for removal of

he child(ren) from SAEZ NELLIE home

in the Permanency and PIannlng Rewew Report to make it possmle for the child(ren) to
eturn to the home of SAEZ, NELLIE ; accordingly,
| IT IS HEREBY RECbMMéNDEb that ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ s
ontinued as a Ward of the Family Court as a child in Need of Protection, ‘
ITIS FURTHER R'ECOM'MENDED that tegal' custodyl remains with the Clark
HCounty Department of Famity Services for placement until ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ
freach(es) the statutory age as prescribed by law, or until further Order of the Court.
tControl and custody is awarded with all necessary authority and power to furnish, provide,
fend authorize cere and servtces to the subject minor(s) as may seem necessary and
roper, and in the child(ren)’s best interest and welfare, including but not limited to: food,
lothing, shelter, education, and routine medlcal care and treatment |
~ IT 1S FURTHER RECOMMENDED that the Clark County Department of Famlly
[Services shall have legal authority to access and obtain any records that relate to the;
[child’s well being to include but not limited to: medical,‘ Idental, educational, mental health,
Iand substance abuse, .
' IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that the Permanency Plan goal of Adoption as

Lecommended by the Clark County Department of Family Services is in the child(ren)'s|
est_interest and shall be adopted by the Court;
IT 1S FURTHER RECOMMENDED that continuation of reasonable efforts to

oo

[eunify ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ with SAEZ, NELLIE , as required by NRS

32B.393 is not consistent with the Permanency Plan;

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that reasonable efforts have been made as cited

2
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18
19
20
21
22
23

24 |

25
26
27

28

IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that the following efforts that have been made
#)y the Clark County Department of Family Services to meet the permanency goal are
[reasonable efforts:

1. The Parental Righfs were terminated January 12, 2017.

2. The Department conducts announced and unannounced home visits at least every
thity days to ensure ESTHER’S safety and well-being and that her needs are’
being met. ’

The Department provided Medicaid for ESTHER.

The Department ordered ESTHER’S medical records.

The Department updated ESTHER'S Social Summary.

The Department submitted an ICPC as to ESTHER'S maternal cousin.
The Department referred ESTHER to Nevada Early Intervention Services.

The Department maintains contact with ESTHER'’S caregivers between in¥person
visits to monitor her progress in placement and assist with referrals as needed.

® N O

IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that sibling visitation is not applicable;
IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that;
Xl Child Support is waived:

[ Child support is ordered in the amount of $ for

- per child; |

IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that the ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ s
pléced in a licensed foster home. ' :
IT IS FURTHER - FOUND AND RECOMMENDED that neither the physical
nﬁstodian(s) nor the parent(s) may remove the subject minor(s) from'the State of Ne\)ada*
pwithout the written consent of the Clark County Department of Family Services or by

IOrder of the Court;
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IT IS FURTHER RECOMMENDED that this matter be reviewed on the 8t Day of
IAugust, 2017, 1:30 PM Department; Family Juvenile.
~ You are hereby notified that you have a right to a rehearing pl;lrsuant to Eighth
Uudicial District Court Rule 1.46. An application for rehearing must be filed within five days
I|af'cear receipt of the Referee’s Findings and Recommendations.
Dated this 7th d.ay of February, 2017.
JUVENILE HEARING MASTER
IT IS SO ORDERED.
|| - Dated this 7th day of February, 2017.
G~
DBTHCTJUDGE—JUVENKE
Submitted by: Submitted by:
‘ STEVEN B. WOLFSON
c DISTRICT ATTORNEY
KRISTINA : ‘
QUINLAN
CASE MANAGER
. DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES
Deputy District Attorney
| COURT CASE NO.: J-15-337398-P1
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Electronically Filed
05/01/2017 01:54:32 PM
ORD

STEVEN B. WOLFSON : '_
District Attorney : m t‘%‘“”'
Nevada State Bar No. 1565 S CLERKOFTHEGOURT . | _.. |
TANNER SHARP : '
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada State Bar No. 13018
Juvenile Division
601 N. Pecos Rd,, Ste. 470
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 455-5320 '
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION - JUVENILE
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of:
ESTHER RODRIGUEZ
DOB: 06-15-2015 - CASE NO. J-15-337398-P1

DEPT: FAMILY JUVENILE
Minor under 18 Years of Age COURTROOM: 14

TER'S FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSION W

RECOMMENDATIONS

This matter came before the Court for an evidentiary hearing on placemeht on April 13, 2017
and April 14, 2017, Present in Coust was the Department of thily Services, represented by Kristina
Quinlan; Tanner Sharp, Esq. in behalf of the Clark County District Attorney’s Office; matemal relatives
Stephanie and Joe Rozier; foster parents Philip and Regina Rivers; and, Raymiond McKay, Esg.
attorney for the subject minor.

The Court, having reviewed the testimony and evidence offered during the hearing, the record in
this matter, relevant statlites, and oral afgmnent, and good cause being shown, makes the following
ﬁndings and recommendation: |

THE COURT HEREBY FINDS that the Deparunem should have located the Rozier's earlier
as they had contact with Esther's adult, half sibling Carolina and as Carolina had contact with the

[Roziers. - RECEIVED

APR 25 201

‘4 JUVENILEDIVISION
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Department should have notified the Rivera's
sooner as to possible placement With the Rozier’s. _

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that both the Rivera’s and the Rozier's are credible
witnesses. The Court finds that the two Department employees were inconsistent in their testimony with
regard to the information relayed to the Rozier’s regarding placement of Esther. As such, the Court
does not find the Department’s testimony credible as to that issue alone. |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Rozier’s demonstrated & reasonable excuse for the
delay in coming forward and requesting placement of Esther.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that both the Rivera’s and the Rozier’s are extremely good
and dedicated parents.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that both the Rivera’s and the Rozier’s have good, strong

family connections, That both are family oriented and would give Esther the opportunity to have a large |

extended fmmly

THE COURT FURTHER F!NDS that both the Rlvera s and the Rozier’s have well thought
out plans for Esther’s education, moral upbringing, and social interaction.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that both the Rivera’s and the Rozier's bave good

community involvement. That both are involved-in church and other organizations.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that both the Rivera’s and the Rozier’s have more than
adequate resources to care for Esther. | |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Esthe s incredibly bonded with the Rivers’s and that
the Rivera’s have proven that they have the ability to care for Esther. |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Rozier's have a biological family connection with
Esther and that it is highly likely that the Rozier’s w111 end up with one of the siblings.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the courts and legislature have determined that when

comparing bonding with biological, family connection, family connection is the overriding
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consideration and the family is where the child should be placed, despite the trauma that Esther will
expgﬁence with a fourth removal.

THE COURT RECOMMENDS that the subject minor be placed with the Rozier’s oﬁ the -
following two cbnditions: (1) Rozier's must provide proof thaft‘hey have the requisite familial
relationship with Esther as represented in court and (2) the Rozier’s must comply with the trauma
minimization transition as outlined ij the Department during the hearing. Placement will not take place
should these conditions not be met, N

IT 18 SO RECOMMENDED on this Q y of A, 2017

. : . (_\ G MASTER
Bk ' : .

ook sk feeopt

NOTI F RIGHT TO FILE OBIECTION TO MAS 'S RECO ATIONS

Objections to the Hearing Master’s Recommendations are governed by EDCR 1.46. No
Recommendations by the Hearing Master will become effective until expressly approved by the
Presiding Juvenile District Court Judge. The Applicant has five (5) days after receipt of this
Hearing Master’s Recommendations to apply to the Presiding Juvenile District Court Judge for
a hearing;: Failure to properly file an Application for Hearing shall result inan Orderof . ..
Approval being entered by the District Court. :

kkkipd
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- Tanner L. Sharp, District Attorney for the State of Nevada, does hereby acknowledge receipt of |
HEARING MASTER’S FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUS?ONS OF  LAW, AND|

RECOMMENDATIONS this day of April, 2017.

| hereby ccrtxfy that service of the above and foregomg y HEARING MASTER'S FINDINGS OF
FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND RECOMMENDATIONS, was made this i‘““{day of-Apeik,.|
2017, by electronic sailing and/or facsimile and/or depositin_g a-copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-
paid, addressed to: | |
RAYMOND MCKAY, ESOQ.
STEPHANIE AND JOE ROZIER

229 BRITTANY COURT
MACON, GEORGIA. 31216

KRISTINA QUINLAN{DFS) B R

S

( y
BY i’ {i\\:iv?i};{;'ki )
An employec. of the District {\twmev’s‘m ﬁce

Juvenile Division }
", &

pTORE,

0035
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Electronically Filed
05/01/2017 03:48:05 PM
STEVEN B. WOLFSON, ESQ. ~

TANNER § | |
DepgzD!slm:t Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT .
BarNo 13018
enile Division
601 North Pecos Rd., #470
NV 89101
“ (702) 5-5320

|| District Attorney )
Nevada State Bar No.1565 ' .
o Ber Q@«t«*“““‘"}

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

: *
In the Matter of the Child;

ESTHER RODRIGUEZ Case No.  J-15-337398-P1
Date of Birth: 06/15/15 Dept. No. Dependency 1
Courtroom 14

COMES NOW, the Clark County Department of Family Services, (hereinafter
“DFS”), by and through the Clark County District Attorney’s Office, by and through
STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attomey and TANNER SHARP, Deputy District
Attorney, and files this OBJECTION TO HEARING MASTER'’S FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

NN N NN
'gﬁg,mh_mn’—oc

~This Objection is baséd upon the attached Points and Authorities and the oral

arguments of counsel at the time of the hearing if so requested by the Court.
DATED this {51 day of MAY, 2017.

Submitted by:
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar No. 13018
Juvenile Division
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NOTICE OF TION
TO: Raymond McKay, counsel for ESTHER RODRIGUEZ;
TO: Stephanie Rozier; T
TO: Kristina Qumlan, ‘

" NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Clark County Department of Family
Semces will bring its Objection on for hearing in Dependency 1, Courtroom 14 of the
Eighth Judicial District Court, Family Division located at 601 North Pecos Road, Las
Vegas, Nevada, on the 231 d day of May, 2017 at the hour of 1J: 99 10: 30 _a.m. or as soon
as possible thereafter. '

DATED thls_E':_day of May, 2017.

Submitted by:
STEVEN B. WOIFSON

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar No. 13018
Juvenile Division .

19
20
21
2

23

24

26
27

- 28

l. FACTS
On July 27, 2015, the DFS removed Esther Rodriguez (heremaﬁer “Esther”) from
the care of her natural mother, Nellie Saez (hereinafier “Saez”), and was placed in a

temporary foster home.! At the time of removal, Saez was asked for potential
plabements for Esther. Séiez only provided the first name of Esther’s adult half sibling
Carolina. On July' 29, 2015,- the court placed Esther in prdtective custody. Esther was|
agdin moved and placed with a permanent foster home. On .Septembgr 3, 2015, Saez

plead no contest to a petition alleging that she failed to submit to drug testing and lacked

! Initially a putative fathet was named as well, but he was later determined not to be Esther’s father after genetic testing,

2-
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resources to provide for Esther. On September 15, 2015, the Court took wardship of
Esther, (See Affidavit in Support of Objection) | | |

-On or about July:29, 2015, DFS submitted a diligent search for family members in
otder to find potential placements. Four relatives were identified, including Esther’s
adult half sibling Carolina Tellez Aand' two relatives living in Florida, Notice was sent to
cach of the relatives. (Exhibit 1: DFS Unity Record) On or about Aptil 8, 2016, Ms,
Quinlan, the DFS permanency caseworker, received a call from Carolina Tellez. Ms.
Tellez reported that she had in person contact with Saez two to four times a month. Ms.
Quinlan notified Ms. Tellez that Saez’s rights may be terminated and that Esther may be
adopted; however, Ms. Tellez reported she could not take placement and did not provide
information as to any other family members who could take placement of Esther.
(Exhibit 1: DFS Unity Record)

On August 2, 2016, the Court changed the permanency plan to termination of
parental rights and adoption. On September 9, 2016 DFS placed Esther in the adoptive
home of foster parents, Phillip and Regina Rivera. (See Affidavit in Support of
Objectioh) On or about October '18,.2016, Stephanie Rozier (hereinafter “Rozier”)
contacted DFS requesting information as to Esther. On October 20, 2016, Ms. Quinlan
contacted Rozier who reported that she and her husband were living in Georgia and

| o _
BN RBRUEBEED

|| interested in placement of Esther. Ms. Quinlan-advised Rozier-that-Esther was in an

adoptive foster home and inquired as to why Rozier had not come forward earlier in the "
case. Ms. Quinlan reported at the time of the call that Rozier was not able to provide a
clear answer to the question. Ms. Quinlan advised Roz‘ier that Esther had been in care
for sixteen months and that she was in an adoptive home. She then discussed the ICPC
‘process wu:h Rozier and advised that she would work with Rozier to submit the ICPC;

however, the final decision of _'plaeement belonged to the Court. (Exhibit 1: DFS Unity| i

Record) Rozier reported to Ms. Quinlan that Esther had an older sibling who was also in
an adoptive home and that she wanted placement of her as well. (Exhibit 1: DFS Unity
Record). Rozier further advised that Saez was pregnant and due around Mother’s Day.

3-
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(__ Afﬁdawt in Support of Objection)
On January 12, 2017, a hearing was held on the petltlon to terminate Nellie’s

the petltlon On February 18, 2017, the Court filed the order termmatmg her parental
nghts (See Affidavit in Support of Objection) |

On January 30, 2017, DFS reported to the Court that Esther was m an adoptive|

home, was comfortable, and bonded to the Rivera’s. It also reported that Rozier had
contacted DFS in October 2016 and that an ICPC had been submitted, (Exhibit 2: DFS
Report)

At the review hearing on February 7, 2017, DF§ advised the Coutt that the case

‘had been referred to the adoption’s unit. DFS again advised the Court of Roz1er and the

ICPC. The Court found that the permanency plan was adoptlon. (Exhibit 3: Court
Minutes).

On March 2, 2017, Rozier contacted Ms. Qulnlan s supervisor Ms, LaMalson, to|
inform her that she had almost completed the foster care classes. Rozier requested

visitation with Esther at that time. Ms. LaMaison explained that the current permanency
goal and court order was for adoption by the current foster parents and that the court

was aware of the ICPC; therefore, Rozier would be the concurrent plan if the Rozier’s

i parental rights.? Rozier was aware of the ‘hearing but did not attend, The Court granted |~ - -

- NN D
2 N B R 8K 28 0

did not adopt Esther. She advised that no visits woilld be arranged at that time as Rezier|..- -~

had no relatlonshlp with the child and as it would not -align with the primary
permanency goal. (Exhibit 1: DFS Umty Record)

- DFS received notice that the ICPC was approved on March 14, 2017. Rozier
contaéted DFS and again asked for visitation and placement. As 2 courtesy, the State
placed this matter before the Court on April 4, 2017, in order for the Rozier’s to address
the court. During the hearing, the Court ordered an evidentiary hearing on placement.
The hearing was held on April 13, 2017 and April 14, 2017. -

? See Case No. D-16-541838-R

0039
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During the heeiring, Rozier testified that she was Nellie’s ﬁfst cousin but had no
proof of the relationship at that time. * Rozier had known Saez her whole life and was
aware that Saez had~substance abuse and mental health-issues; as -were~the other
members of the family. Rozier also knew that Saez had several children in the system
and had been homeless at times. Rozier knew Saez had maintained that lifestyle prior to
Esther’s birth.* ‘ ‘ | |

Rozier knew of Esther’s birth shortly after Esther was born, 5 Rozier claimed to
have had no further contact with Saez until one week prior to the evidentiary hearing
when she was able to make contact with Saez and told her that she would be taking Saez
to a child welfare history for Esther’s sibling. 6

Rozier advised the Court that she had a close family,” Rozier has maintained
contact with Ms. Tellez and another half sibling via social media’ Rozier aiso
maintained a good relationship with a maternal uncle “Tony” who resided in Florida.

~ - Rozier claimed that on October 18, 2016, Tony advised her that Esther had been
removed in Las Vegas and that Bsther’s twelve year old half sibling was also in care,®
Rozier claimed that she was completely unaware that Esther had been removed pri_dr to
that date; howew)er Rozier admitted “it wasn’t surprising considering what we know
about her”."! Rozier contacted DFS on October 18, 2016 and left a message for Ms,

ORI NN NN e

Quinlan.'? Ms. Quinlan-contacted Rozier on October 20, 2016. Rozier claimed that Ms: |-
Quinlan told her that the child was taken into care ‘when the child was ten months old,|
that Rozier called just in time to be considered, and that she would need to take foster
care classes as part of the ICPC process. Rozier admitted that she was told that Esther

(4/13/]7 14:37:00-14:38:24) - As transcripts are not available, tame stamps on the video of the hearing are used as citations, |
4 (4/13/17 14:38:30 -14:43:15, 14:50:51-14:52:10, 14:55:00-14:5530).
5 (4/13/17 14:44:00-14:44:39) _
© (411317 14:44:50-14:48:40)
? (4/13/17 14:56:15-14:57:00)
8 (4/13/17 14:44:00-14:44:39).
% (4/13/17 14:49:10-14:49:52).
19°64713/17 14:52:11-14:54:35, 14:57:00-14:58:00)
Y 4/13/17 14:50:51-14:52:10)
12 (4/13/17 14:58:05-14:59:48)
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|| placement if the adoptwn with the Rivera’s fell throu

was in an adoptive home, but she did not believe that she would only be considered for

Rozier was aware-of-the-hearing ot the- tenmnatmn of parental rights. and"that:.-

there would be further court hearings."* Rozier also testified that she was told she could
begin visiting Esther in October, 2016. The opportunity to visit was not élosed.unfil
February 2016. To this date, Rozier has not met Esther. Rozier stated that she had not
visited Esther as she thought it best to complete the ICPC classes first."”

When questioned about what she could offer Esther, Rozier first addressed the
foster parents and stated that, “There is no doubt in my mind that they can provide the
same life... We can equally give her the same life, the same love, the same care...
There’s no doubt about that.”'® Rozier stated that she was aware that Esther was two

years old and knew that moving to her home would cause Esther trauma; however, with|

time, Esther would get used to her family."”

During the evidentiary hearing, the State called Ms. Quinlan who testified
regarding the diligent search for family members as well as the notification sent to those
who were located. Ms. Quinlan confirmed that in April 2016, Ms. Tellez contacted her
and that she advised Ms. Tellez that DFS was looking for an adoptive placement No
other relatives made contact with DFS until Ms. Rozier."®

fé

NN NN e
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N (4713717 15:05:55-15:07:05, 15:08:40-15:08:43, 15:33:45-15:34:15)

- Ms. Quinlan-confirmed the information included-in DFS’s records: regardmg ~hert--

conversation with Rozier. She spoke with Rozier on October 20, 2016, and advised her

that Esther had been in care for sixteen months and that she was in an adoptive home.
Ms. Quinlan asked Rozier why she had not come forward earlier and Rozier was unable
to give a clear response. Ms. Quinlan advised Rozier that she would begin the ICVPCO

process; however, Ms. Quinlah testified that she explained to Rozier that the goal was

B (4/13/17 15:01:05-15:03:40)
¥ (411317 15:04:40-15:05:10)

6 (4113117 15:26:10 — 15:26:36).
17 (4113117 15:38:20-15:38:50, 15:52:45-15:54; 50)
18 (4/13/17 16:13:07-16:15:58)
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for the child to be adopted by the foster parents. Additionally, Ms. Quinlan did not
advise Rozier that she needed to take foster care classes as she always advises families
to wait for theirstate’s- TCPC to-contact them regarding what they arerequired to do."”
M. Quinlan testified that Esther does have a half sibling in foster care; however,

that child is cerreetly in an adoptive foster home and Saez’s rights have not yet been
terminated, She was also made aware that Saez was pregnant.” | |

Ms. Quinlan reported that Esther is extremely bonded to the Rlvera S, Esther
refers to them as “mom” and “dad” and adores them. She is attached to the point of
being “clingy”. *' Esther is meeting developmental milestones, although there was
initially some concern with speech delay.? )

Ms. Quinlan testified that she has had education and training on the effect that
multiple :emovals can have on a 'young child. Quinlah’s training included graduate
school courses that covered advanced mental health counseling, reviewing
approximately ten to twenty scientific studies on the issue, and training provided
through DFS. Ms. Quinlan testified that the effects of multiple removals can be long
term, that every removal can set the child’s development back four to six months, and
that muitiple removals can cause reactive attachment disorder and other behavioral
issues. It may also result in troubie forming bonds in the future.” |

i

' ll-ll
BNRRRENEESD

-When. asked if, based on her-experience with the Rivera’s-and Esther, she
believed it to be in the best interest of Esther to place her with Rozier, Ms. Quinlan
stated no as: (1) it would delay permanency for Esther as the Rivera’s are set to adopt
her in approximately thirty days, which would comply with ASFA guidelines
Placement with Roz1er would delay permanency for one year; (2) Esther has been with
the Rivera’s for one third of her life, a significant amount of time for a child her age; (3)
Esther is extremely bonded to the Rivera’s and Esther considers them family; (4) the

15 (4/13/17 16:16:10-16:19:15, 16:23:15-16:23:50)
R (4/13/17 16:20:40-16:22:44)
n (4/13/17 16:23:52-16:25:00)
2 (4/13/17 16:25:02-16:25:20)
B (4/13/17 16:25:52-16:28:23)
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||Rivera’s have ensured that Esther maintains contact with the second foster family who .

cared for her and Esther is able to maintain that bond; and, (5) the Rivera’s are willing
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

\t0 allow Rozier to visit and have-contaet with Esther once the adoption is finalized.# .-

The State also called Ms. LaMaison during the evidentiary hearing, Ms.
LaMaison testified that she has education and training on the effects of removals on
children. Ms. LaMaison is one of thirteen certified trainers nationwide in the MAPS
program, The MAPS program focuses on how to minimize trauma on children, children .

and bonding, and ways to support children, Her fraining and experience also include
DFS’ 357 program which addresses successful bonding in adoptions,. courses on

reactive attachment disruptions and trauma. She also has training through DFS, as well
as eleven years of experience as a juvenile probation officer in which she was trained in
abnormal psychology with those juveniles who have unstable relationships.

Ms. LaMaison testified that a child’s foundational building blocks are created
during the first two years of life and this time period is when a child builds loving,
secure attachments with their caregivers. This time period is the most essential for
children. Ms. LaMaison testified that removal results in trauma including, changes in
the overall development of the brain, effects on the child’s long term and short term

memory, abnorihal\_ behaviors, impulse control, increased anxiety, maladaptive

R 1;9...

20
21

- 22

23
2
25
26

27
-H* (4/13/17 16:29:08-16:33:40)

28

behaviors, -control issues, aggression, and can increase the risk of criminal behavior.
Ms. LaMaison stated that at all cost, the general consensus is that children should not be

moved.?

Ms. LaMaison stated that she had observed Esther with the Rivera’s and found
that Esther was_'véry bonded to the Rivera’s and that the Rivera’s were excellent
caregivers.® When asked about a possible fourth removal and placément with Rozier,
Ms LaMaison stated tﬁat such a move would cause severe, long term trauma to Esther

as the child is in the bonding period. Esther already demonstrates some trauma, even |

B (41417 10:18:40-10:24:400)

1% @/1417 10:24:50-1027:20)
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with the careful transition from the previous placement change. Ms. LaMaison testified
that, if moved, one could expect Esther to have control issues and that she might regress.

Esther may no longer be toilet trained and will: probably. lose the verbal skills she has. |-

Further, negative behaviors would increase such as tantrums.”’

With regard to a possible long term, therapeutic transition, Ms. LaMaison stated
that it would be problematic given that Rozier lives out of state. Furthermore, one would
still expect to see long term trauma in Esther. As such, it would not be in the best
interest of the child to be placed with Rozier.”®

Ms. LaMaison also testified that she had spoken with Rozier in March 2017, and
advised her that the plan was to have the child adopted by the current caregiver.”

| Ms. Rivera testified that Esther has an established daily routine that includes
consistent, positive contact with Esther, Esther demonstrates loving physical affection to
both of the Rivera’s such as hugs and kisses and Esther is.a “daddy’s girl.” Esther refers
to Regina Rivera as “mama” and Phillip Rivera as “Dada.” Since coming into their
home, Esther has overcome her speech delay. Esther is very bonded to Ms. Rivera’s
mother, whom Esther sees at least once a week and speaks to her often on the phone.
Esther has met, formed relationships with, and bonded with the Rivera’s extended

family members. The Rivera’s have continued communication with the previous foster

19
20
21
2
23
24
25
2%
27
28

family. The Rivera’s-ensure that Bsther-is able to-socialize with other qhildrén‘and gain|

an education. Esther’s teachers report that she has shown progress in social and
emotional development, that she appears happy and safe, and that she has bonded to the
staff. Esther has strong relationships with the children at her school. (See also -Exhibit 4:
Prevnously Admitted Rivera References) The Rlvera s are active in their faith and Esther
is well bonded with her faith community. (See also Exhibit 4: Previously Admitted
Rivera References) The Rivera’s have been consistent in ensuring Esthgr s medical care.

The Rivera’s are financially able to care for Esther. Ms. Rivera stepped down from her

2 o (14/17 10:27:21-10:28:50)
* (10:29:55-10:31:30)
¥ (10:33:00-10:33:45).
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1 {lhigh level, employment position in which she was the director of human resources when
2 || Esther came into her care in order to care for Esther. (See also Exhibit 4: Previously
3:|| Admitted Rivera References) Esther is-happy and healthy: The Rivera’s are willing:to |-
4 ||allow the Rozier’s to have visits with Esther once the adoption is complete. Ms. Rivera
5 ||testified that removal would result in trauma and is not in Esther’s best interest.3
6 At the conclusion of the hearing, the hearing master recommended that the child
7 ||be placed with Rozier. (Exhibit 5: Hearing Master’s Findings of Facts and
8 Recommendations);
9 IL ARGUMENT
10 The Rules of Practice for the Eight Judicial Disirict Court 1.46(g) allows a party in a
11 | child welfare proceeding to object to a hearing master’s recommendation:
12 '
1‘3 (5) At any time prior to the expiration of 5 days after the service of a written copy of the -
findings and recommendations of a master, & party, a minor's attorney, or guardian or
14 person responsible for the child’s custodial placement may file an objection motion to the -
supervising district court judge for the division represented by the master for a hearing.
15 Said motion must state the grounds on which the objection is based and shall be
accompanied by a memorandum of points and authorities. .
16 (6) A supervising district Judge may, after a review of the record provided by the
17 requosting party and any pariy in opposition to the review, grant or deny such objection
motion. The court may make its decision on the pleadings submitted or afier a hearing on
18 the ments In the absence of a timely objectlon mouon, the ﬁndmgs and recommendatlon
-39 |} Judge, become an order of the court o . Ml o e o *L'-:-;Z‘;-'...-:;-:,-’.:Ti e
20 The Nevada Supreme Court has held the following in regards to the review of a
21 || hearing master’s recommendations:
22 : '
The constitutional power of decision vested in a trial court in child custody cases can be
23 cxercised only by the duly constituted judge, and that power may not be dclegated to a
24 master or other subordinate official of the court. Thus, although a master has the authority
, to hear dependency cases and make findings and recommendations, a master does not
25 - possess the same powers conferred to a juvenile court judge through Article 6, Section 6
26 of the Nevada Consututton As a result only the luvemlg ggm 1g_dg§ mgkes the
27 m g power 1o a_master, T]ns is ng; ;g say that the juvenile ggg;t ghgu!d_ not _give
erious consideration to er's findings of fact and recommendation. However
28. '
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since the ultimate disposition lies with the juvenile court, the master's findings and
recommendation are not binding on the coust.... the dependency master's findings must

be carofully reviewed by the juvenile court, but a master's findings and recommendation
‘ Mly_ggum The juvemle court is not reqmred to rely on the master's ﬁndmgs, but 1f
-3

M z IE y;dgmc and not clewz mo_n gﬁ After reviemng the ﬁndmgs, the

juvenile court is free to determine the applicable facts and to exetclse its mdcpendent

~ judgment in reaching a disposition. Clark Co Servs. V. _

Judicial Dist. (Inre A.B.), 291 P 3d 122, 127-128 (Nev 2012) (cltatlons and quotatlons
omitted).

The State respectfully objects to the Hearing Master findings of fact, conclusions |

of law, and recommendations as: (1) the Hearing Master did not apply the standard set
forth by the Supreme Court of Nevada in determining placement under NRS 432B.550;
(2) fatmllal preference does not exist in this case; (3) Rozier did not demonstrate a

reasonable excuse for delay; (4) It is not in the best interest of Esther to be placed with

_Rozxer, (5) DFS could not have located Rozier earlier as they did not know of her

existence; (6) It was not determined when DFS advised the Rivera’s of Rozier’s ICPC;
(7) the testimony of Ms. Quinlan and Ms. LaMaison wéé not inconsistent in what was
relayed to the Rozier’s regarding placement; (8) there is no evidence that Rozier is an
extremely good and dedicated parent; (9)~ Rozier does not have custody of Esther’s

siblings.

(1) The Hearing Master did not applx the standard set forth by the Supreme Cour
of Nevada in determining placement under 432B.550.

NN N NN N e
%q-mm-ﬁww»—ou;

The Hearing Mastet did fiot apply the standard set forth by the Supreme Court; |

therefore, his findings and recommendations are clearly erroneous. The Hearing Master
found that “the courts and legislature have determined that when comparing bonding
with bmloglcal family connection, family connection is the overriding consideration
and the famlly is where the child should be placed, despite the trauma that Esther will
expetience with a fourth removal.” This is S1mply not the case.

In Clark County Dist. Atty. v. Elghth Judicial Dist. Court, the Nevada
Supreme Court held that, when deteﬁnining placement of a child uh_der NRS 432B.550,
“the child's best interest necessarily is the main consideration for the district court when

exercising its discretion concerning placement. Accordingly, after concluding: that a

-11-
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familial preference exists, the district conrt's analysis should center on the child's
best interest.” 123 Nev. 337, 346, 167 P.3d 922, 928 (2007) _ '
TheCoaet explained “the district court must first determine whether-the relatives.
seeking custody of a child are sufficiently related to the child, then the court must
determine suitability. Once the criteria for the statutory preference are established, the
statute creates a familial placement preference, not 5 p résumption, and the district

court must then consider placing the child with the relatives. The placement decision

ultimately rests in the district court's discretion, which must be guided by careful|

consideration of the child's best interest.” Id. at 348.

With regard to the legislative intent behind NRS 432B.550, the Supreme Court of |

Nevada found that the Legislature’s use of the word "prefetence," rather than
"presumption,” suggests its concern that relatives who are "ready, willing, and able" to

keep a family together be favored for placément over nonrelatives, but that suitable

| relatives are not neceésarily entitled to custody.” As such, the Court construed NRS:

432B.550(5)(b)'s placement preference to operate within the ove mbrella of the
child's best interest. Id. at 346. -

The law set forth by the Nevada Supreme Court clearly demonstrates that the
Court and legislature have determined that, despite family relationships, the best interest

[ T S R
8 3 88 8 EES =2 230

of the child is the standard in determining placement:” . .. -~ - =" —
{2) Familial preference does not exist in this case _
In determining placement under NRS 432B.550, the Court must first determine

whether a familial preference exists. Id. at 346.

As Saez’s rights were termmatzd the familial relationship between the Esther and |’

the Rozier’s is severed. Therefore, the fam111al preference does not exist. In Bopp v.

Lino, the Nevada Supreme Court reversed a disirict court’s decision to allow| -

grandparents visitation rights where the grandparents petitioned the court for visitation

after the child was adopted. 110 Nev. 1246, 1247, 885 P.2d 559, 560 (1994). The Court

found that when an order for adoption is entered, the statute establishes a new legal | -

-12-
0047




O o N o W b

10
11
12
13
14
15

16 ||

17
18

family for the adopted child and terminates the legal relationship between the child and
her natural kindred. Id, at 1250. In its analysis, the Court cited to Lipginski v. Lipginski

tand summarized it as follows “the=vonsequence of adoption is to divest the natural oo

parent of all legal rights and obligations to the child; such abrogation of all legal
relationship_and_rights to_a natural parent must likewise apply to ¢
grandparent of an adopted child.” 476 N.E.2d 924 (Ind. Ct. App. 1985)

The Court explained that the Nevada Revised Statutes carve out an exception for
certain relatives who petition for visitation rights prior to the adoption being finalized;
hoWever, wheré the statute fails to provide an exception the ex-relative has no right.
Bopp v. Lino at 1251,

In reviewing the aforementioned statute, NRS 125C.030, grandparents, siblings,
and those with whom the child has resided, have a right to visitation after the
termination of parent’s rights. ¥ Therefore, the Legislature carved out the exception
after the parental rights were terminated, thereby demonstrating that the relafionship
with the relatives was terminated at the time the parents’ rights were terminated.

Taken together, it is clear that the relationship between the child and relatives is
actually severed when the parents’ rights are terminated, although the statute allows a
select few to petition for limited rights of \)isitétion prior to adoption.

.-.. 19 H-

20

- 21

22
23
24
25

2%

27

28
* previously NRS 127,171

_ As such, Rozier can no longer claim familial preference-as that relationship was
tettninated when Saez’s rights were terminated.
(3) Rozier did not demonstrate a reasonable excuse for delay .
The Héaring Master found that the “Rozier’s demonstrated a reasonable sxcuse
for the delay in coming forward and requesting placement of Esther.” This was based
upon Ms. Rozier’s representation that she had no further contact with Saez after Esther’s
birth and was not made aware of the removal until October 18, 2016.
The Nevada Supreme Court held that if a family member, with knowledge that a
child has been placed into pfotective custody, delays seeking custody of the child for

-13-
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more than one year after the child's initial placement, the family member must

demonstrate a reasonable excuse for the delay in order to retain the familial preference's

application. Additionally, the Court found that despite~BFS".duty to-locate familial
placements, the family member has a concomitant duty to step forward and request
custody: Id. at 347. .

Rozier knew Saez had substance abuse and meéntal health issues. She knew that
Saez had several children in the system and had been homeless at times. She knew Saez
had maintained this lifestyle prior to Esther’s birth. Rozier admitted that when she
learned of Esther’s removal “it wasn’t surprising considering what we know about”

Saez. As sttch, Rozier should have known that Esther was either in danger or had been

removed. However, Rozier, according to her testimony, did not attempt to contact Saez| -

about the child.

Additionally, Rozier claimed that her family was close. She maintained some|
commumcatlon with Ms. Tellez who clearly knew that Esther was removed as she spoke| -

with Ms. Quintan, She was close with her maternal uncle “Tony” in Florida who had

access to information as he was aware that both Esther and her half sibling had been|

removed. DFS also prdvided written notice to family members found via a diligent

search. Given that her family is close and as her family had information as to the

NN NN DN e

Jtremovals, it is unreasonable to believe that she was not advised of the removal-until

sixteen months later.

Furthermore, as noted in the DFS records on the date of the call and pursuant to

Ms. Quinlan’s testnmony, Ms. Saez was not able to provide a clear response as to why o

she had waited to contact the Department. She was aware or should have been aware of
Esther s removal. Therefore, Saez did not provide a reasonable excuse for the delay.

Finally, after Rozier made contact with the DFS, she failed to petition the Court,
did not attend the TPR or-review hearing, did not wsn Esther and has never filed a
motion with the Court seeking placement.

- As such, Rozier failed to provide a reasonable excuse for the delay and the

-14-
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familial preference should not apply.
(4) It is not in the best interest of Esther to be placed with Rozier

w
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- The Nevada Supreme Court has held that. in hearings to determine placement
pursuant to NRS 432B.550, the standard is the best interest of the child. The Court
stated “when piacement with nonrelatives best serves the child's best interest, the
familial preference is negated.” Id. at 345. The Court continued, “The child's best

interest continues to be the overarching standard to be used by the district court in|

making placement decisions, even those involving the familial preference.” Id. at 344.
The Court again emphasized this standard by stating, “The child's best interest

necessarily is the main consideration for the district court when exercising its discretion|

concerning placement. Accordingly, after concluding that a familial preference exists, |

the district court's analysis should center on the child's best interest.” Id. at 346,
It is not in Esther s best interest to. be placed with Rozier for the following
reasons: . , . _ _
(a) The permanency goal for Esther is adoption
. On August 2, 2016, the Court found that it was in Esther’s best interest to be
adopted. The Court made this same conclusion at the latest review hearing, At the time
of the evidentiary hearing, Esther adoption was set to be finalized within thirty days.

19
20
21
2
2
24
25
2%
27
28

Esther is almost two-years old, Not-only.-would the-adoption provide Esther with|

permanency but it would be within the ASFA. guidelines.

Placement with the Rozier’s is uncertain. Certainly the Rozier’'s hope the|

placement will work out, but there is no evidence to support that assumption,

Furthermore, it would delay permanency for Esther for approximately one year given| -

the adoption process.

~ (b) Rozier failed to demonstrate that it is in Esther s best interest to be glaced
~ with her

Rozier does not believe that the quahty of Esther’s life will be 1mproved by
placing the child with her. She stated “There is no doubt in my mind that they [the

-15-
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Rivera’s] can provide the same life... We can equally give her the same life, the same
love, the same care... There’s no doubt about t
=2~ However, the State has concerns with-the Rozier’s ability to care for Esther, First,
despite testifying about her close family and the number of relatives that Esthef would
have contact with, no other relatives have come forward seeking placement. Aside from
one phone call from Ms, Tellez a year ago, no other fainiiy members have even called to
check on Esther. It is unclear what family support Rozier and her husband would
actually have. Second, Rozier was aware of Saez’s issues and failed to make contact
with her or seek Esther out until sixteen months after removal, despite the threat to
Esther’s safety. Third, Rozier failed to visit Esther when the option was available.
Fourth, Rozier failed to contact or petition the Court. Fifth, Rozier is unawate of or
minimizes the trauma that Esther will experience if placed with her.

(¢) Esther has formed relationships with and bonded those in her communi

Esther has established relationships and has bonded with her friénds, teachers,
faith community, and the Rivera’s relatives. She continues to have a relationship with
her prior foster home. It is not in her best interest to traumatized Esther by severing

these relationships.

(e) Esther is extremely bonded to the Rivera’s

B3 XV ELS =2 30

-—=~To Esther, the Rivera’s are her parents. She refers to them as “ma:ma” and “dada.”| .-

She is “daddy’s little girl.” She expresses love and affection to the Rivera’s which they
reciprocate. She is attached to the point of being “clingy”. She has a daily routine with

the Rivera’s. They are her emotional and mental support. Since coming into their care,

Esther has overcome her speech delay. Esther is not only bonded to the Rivera’s but to|

their family and friends. The Hearing Master found that Esther is incredibly bonded to
the Rivera’s. Severmg this relatlonshlp would not be i in Esther’s best mterest

()  The Rivera’s have proven themselves to be an excellent placemen
The Hearmg Master found that the R1vera. s have proven that they are capable of

caring for Esther. They have demonstrated their willingness to sacrifices, as shown by

.16~
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Ms. Rivera stepping down from her hlgh level pbsition. They have shown their ability to} -

care for Esther’s physical, emotional, and social wellbeing. DFS, the community, and

the Hearing Master all conﬁﬂnﬁhatsﬂley are"excellent caregivers. It is not in Esther’s| -

best interest to remove her from a stable, proven environment and place her elsewhere.
" (g) Removing Esther from her home would result in long term trauma to her
The Court received uncontroverted evidence that removing Esther from her
current home would result in long term trauma to Esther. This trauma includes changes
in the overall development of the brain, effects on the child’s long term and short term
memory, abnormal behaviors, impulse' control, increased anxiety, maladaptive
béhaviors,_ contro] issues, aggression, and increase risk of criminal behavior. The
testimony was that, at all cost, the genefal_consensus is that children should not be
moved, , | ,
Esther is almost two years old. She has been moved a total of three times thus far.
She is currently extremely bonded to the Rivera’s. Esther already demonstrates some
trauma after the last move, even with the careful transition from the previous placement
change. Another move would cause severe, long term trauma to Esther as the child is in

the bonding period. Additionally, long term trauma is not mitigatéd by a long transition.

It is not in Esther’s best interest to undergo such trauma in order to be placed with|.

. b (ST C T TR X S
2 N R RBRIE S8 &

Rozier, -~ -~ - B B e

The overwhelming evidence during the hearing as well as the Hearing Master’s
finding of incredible bonding between Esther and the Rivera’s demonstrates that it is not
in Esther’s best interest to be moved from the Rivera’s care. Additionally, the State
wouid add a policy concérn, Rémoving‘ a child from an adoptive home when the
adoption is set to finalize within thirty days will discourage good foster parents from
seeking to adopt. This, in m, will affect children needing permanency.

DFS could not have located Rozier earlier as they did not know of her existence
The Hearing Master found that DFS should have located Rozier as DFS had

|| contact with Ms, Tellez who had contact with sziei'. However, as Ms. Tellez did not

-17-
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disclose information about Roziet to DFS, DFS could not have known about Rozier’s

existence. Furthermore, this does not negate Rozier’s duty to come forward in a timely

‘manner. e -

(6) It was not determined when bFS adviged the Rivera’s of Rozier’s ICPC
The Hearing Master found that DFS should have advised the Rivera’s of the ICPC

sooner. The State does not recall testimony during the hearing as to when the Rivera’s|

were first told of the ICPC.

{7) The testimony of Ms. Quinlan and M, LaMaison was not inconsistent in what
way relayed to Rozier regarding placement ' ~

The Hearing Master found that Ms. Quinlan and Ms. LaMaison were inconsistent
in their testimony with regard to the information relayed to the Rozier regarding
placement of Esther, -As such, the Court did not find the Department’s testimoxiy
credible as to that issue alone. However, both the testimony of Ms. Quinlan and Ms.
LaMaison and the DFS records make it clear that both DFS employees informed Rozier
that the plan was for the Rivera’s to adépt Esther. Rozier was to be a second option
should the adoption not occur, This was not inconsistent.-

The inconsistency lies with Rozier. Rozier claimed that Ms. Quinlan mformed her

that she would be considered as an adoptlve placement, but that Ms. LaMaison informed |

NN Y e
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advised her that Esther had been removed at ten months;.wés;' in an adoptivé':ﬁbme, and|

that she would need to take foster care classes. This demonstrates Rozier’s lack of
credibility as Esther had been removed for sixteen months and as Ms. Quinlan would
hot hafle advised her to take classes for another state’s ICPC. F urther, as Esther was in
an adoptive home. Rozier knew or should have.:!mown that the plan was for Esther to be
adopted by that home, | S

{8) There is no evidence that Rozier is an extremely good and dedicated mren

The Hearing Master found that the Rozier’s are extremely good and dedicated |

parents. The Rozier’s provided no evidence that they are extremely good and dedwated

parent that the State can recall. There is no foundatxon for this recommendation.

=18 T
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1 ||(9) Rozier does not have custody of Esther’s siblings
2 " " The Hearing Master found that the Rozier's are likely to gain custody of one of
= ..3-|| Esther’s siblings, However, 4t thiz time, the Rozier’s do not have custody of either|™ |-
4 {| sibling. The older sibling is currently in an adoptive home and Saez’s parental rights are
5 ||intact. Since the time of the hearing, Saez géve birth, That child was taken into|
6 || protective custedy and is currently residing with the Rivera’s, although an ICPC is
7 pending to Rozier. However, wardship has not been taken of that child and Saez’s nghts | 5
8 || have not been terminated. ‘
9 III. CONCLUSION
10 * Based on the foregoing, it is requested that the Court teject the Hearing Master’s x
11 || findings and recommendations as outlined in thls objection and that the Court not
12 ||remove Esther from her current home.
13 DATED thisE_day of May, 2017.
15 Submitted by:
STEVEN B. WOLFSON
- 16 Distg rney
” Baue
18 Tanner Sharp :
19 District Attorney o e
- - Nevada Bar No. 13018
- 20 Juvenile Division
21
- 22
23 ||
4
| 25
26
27
28
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T R IN SUPPORT OF OBJECTION

STATE OFNEVADA )
. 88!

Py

I, TANNER SHARP, hereby swear under penalty of perjury that t‘he assertions of
this afﬁdav:t are true. -
1. Tam ‘a deputy district attomey with the Clark County District Attomey S
Office.
. 2. .1am currently assigned to the child welfare case involving subject minor
Esther Rodriguez. | '

brief.

T

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me
this \" day of MAY, 2017,

LRl B -

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the said

I
My Appt, Exp. Sept, 8, 2020

B8R 8 RENRS

COUNTY OF CLARK ™)’ ]

3. That I am familiar with the history and facts of the cases as outlined in the|

County and State of Nevada

20~
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1 - CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
2 I hereby certify that service of the above OBJECTION TO HEARING
3 ||MASTER’S FINDINGS- OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS ~OF-- LAW, AND
4 || RECOMMENDATIONS was made this _]_ day of May, 2017, by electronic mailing |
5 |tand/or facsimile and/or depositing in the U.S. Mail in a sealed envelope with firsi-class
6 || postage fully prepaid thereoh, to the following: -
7 Raymond McKay ' Stephanie Rozier
8 || Raymond Mckay@I ibertyMutual.com 229 Brittany Qom

:) Kristina Quinlan (DFS) N ’

' (Wit

" Employee{ Disttict Attor;(;zs\ Ofﬁce,

12 ~ Juvenileeg@n : -

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

2

24

25

26

27

28
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'DILIGENT $EARCH

GonmctWith Coniact About
RODRIGUEZ, PEDRO:
SAEZ, NELLIE

Autlior: VANDERBUSSE, LORE

-:rme_:-omca SPECIAKIST

writed rg&iveda Dil t Semh v&uest -3 lucute Noflle Saez, 3/17172,327-62-8794; und Pedro Rodriguez, /26178, 552-55-.

This

Nellle sm
*Nomads: Nellte&ﬁez.llm‘m 327-62-8194

Remwihg Sl
Lagt Hﬁ;ﬁ:dﬂf} San.Joquinn Ave, LVN 89102

$9104: hid fanilly tmembiré-fot phasibie placesnent

f_ﬁ‘} ""5%“’ :7'34' Rzﬂgﬂohw 80101 - 4/19/15
nanza
. Laxg:‘meﬂ fio. lelnmﬂaez, 1974,

igm. BEACH.CA 91932.0345, SAN DIEGO. couN'rY {Pec 1992~ Jun-2015)

. . 914 GRANGER:S 1; | DIBOO CA 921541859, SAN DIEGO COUNTY }( Mar.-2002 - Jul 2015} }

maNiLGrbAL ws _'\YBM’Ts.GAR GROVBCAmao-lm ORANGE COURTY (484 2012 - Lifi2018) ~
or.

Relatives Fos: NBLLIECAROL!NA SABZ 327-62-8794

Lizivido Saez, 6448 1130551 Semlnbfe. 4 P 337‘?2-6749

Martia Saez. 1717 Thistigs S Clearwo, FL 33755:23

Carolina SaezTcllez. 4520 N, Rlver R, #25N, Omnmdh, CA 92057-51.19
Nﬂuoy Saez, 1222.N. FﬁgSl, f}A, Escorndido, CA 920262810

- — Nenie-not Tisted st CCPE, LV Jail, 02 NV-& CA-Dopantment of Coreeations, - - -’ oo = s o e

Pedio Rodrigmm
Nomms. Pedto. M. Redrigucz, 616/78,. §52-55-4712

B

e

Lamiy
.M-tﬂpmwmmmm
v epir %iggg Mlssanloqn{hAvc, LVN 80102

smNexls. P&o Rodriguoz Sr, 6126178, 552:55-4712

‘#ddiess:
) ssu l% ARsouTosnwD APT72, OCEANSIDE CA 9205§-1558, SAN. DIEGO COUNTY (Mar 2008-Jut 2015)
;’ .me B}‘J‘?& ST, %(‘:}E%NS] B CA 92058-2607, SAN DIEGO-COUNTY: (Aug2005 - fun 2015) '
1] -

Rilatives.For: PEDRORODRIGUEZ. 552-55-47 12 »
%t;p:%!lﬁconor. Claudls; Pedro, & Cecilla Rodtiguez, and Rather Gomez, &,. 1344 Bush 81, Oceanside, CA
Main Rodiguioz, $44 Greenbidler Dr, #18, Qusanside, CA 92054-4362

Narne not listed al CCDC, L.V-jail, byt possiblo:matchesiin NV & CA-DOC, unable to vcrify
The above iiformation was. émailed to-Caséworker Martha Cardiel on 7/29/15.
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Nots Type(s) ,
CHILDCONTACT .

TCM Activity Type(s)
ASSESS NEEDS

Contact With.
RODRIGUEZ, ESTHER, B.

REASSESS NEEDS

Contagt About
RODRIGUEZ, BSTHBR.
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Note Tipe(s)
RELATIVEGONTACT

Conlact Wi ’ | Chtaotbout
’ RONRIGUEZ, BSTHER, B.

Anthor: QUINLAN, KRISTINA o
‘l’llle»FAMILYSE_B,VlCBS_-SI’EC N - w—

srecfaltmc@émdvi 11 wsgsiige froii fiatertial eousin stephaniegodﬂguezmalmasoszsssa this:speotatist rapurned
theoall.an onwna m%‘mﬁ&a{m phonchp.

ltﬁa voiccma

Note Typels)
COLLATERAL - MEDICAL CONTACT

TéM Adtivily Type(s)
NOME
"Contact With ‘ Conlzct Aboiit
SAEZ, NELLIE
_Aunthor: | PEARL, GI‘NA _______ o o B o - .

Title: FAMILY SBRVICES SPEC SURY

"Note Typli}
_RELATIVECONTACT

TCM Activity Type(s)
NONE

Contact With : - Contact About
‘ RODRIGUERZ, ESTHER, B.

Author: QUINLAN, KRISTINA
Titté: FAMILY SERVICES SPEC 1t

Page 17ef 135
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"This speclalist spoke with'S| loRodn ez Who tobe the maternal first cougin to uulmlmhlher Ws. Rodnguazmports
henﬁ'& hétang :lhel‘smﬁlel? oy nll crat siﬁig'g?“ M Rodnfgmnpnrtssw:a inmwﬂﬂwimmemo Esth
gpahltst issed with s, tﬁherfsh atdoplive-Todter hirie nd-liuired as (g wiry-Ms. Roth
: ingEslherea(llerIu eunsa j ﬁ‘ﬁl id ot recelve 4 glineansiver 10 the s 'p_;n;:lgfb:
Bsmrhumolderhal gk Wh% aISoinnn ptive-honie lint-Ms. Rade; r;lc.tl_ Nt 4 Bll,
_ réports she ad ey, rgih- “wh their own reside H%f ﬂ “nm}' i
Gompa mtdhwiha lhowmmyfor ¢« trdt they pmmot vﬁdldmoﬂﬂw "aiiit-and ey yaul.to-adpt iami
ecietist iscusged with Ms, Rodrigyez: thatf&m Iytlmcomés forward In mtyzarumﬂy;mt%flor _ln aceqnemabm
o ap ik ek g, il ot *:%h@“mf:swgfm
Vol b iy : :
fignez, bl i Estlser:canmio). bephcedwﬁh alem t%ulﬂhé#ou?v ?lll llk:
el etrinit o smm@ya o avd faciéstéd photogiaphs of Bstlier-| e, Ms;

!{%m,r ;f;ppsiﬂﬂe bcl?‘ef*‘ﬂfat nnulrat

_t:ﬂo'la,’-l’m’ O
MEDICAL CONTACT

TCM Activity Typé(s)
AYSESS NEEDS

‘Contacl With Coniecl:About
" RODRIGUEZ, ESTHER, B.

-« —Apthor SWANSON, NATALIE, .. R T -
Tifle: CHILD DEVELOPMENT AﬁngTANT :

I!slherwas seen Tor'a medical cxamvol Positivoly. Kids/Tompkins Qlin by Jeunifer Deaughis, !’A-C on 10/19/2016. Patieiitvas

¢
assbssed witla. fofehead vontusion. FOLLOW UP: 11/14/2016 at 9: Ub and 111672057 at9:00..

’Nhte.ypﬂ‘ ORI

MEDICAL CONTACT

TCM Astivily Type(s)
ASSESS NBEDS

Contact Willy.” | Contact A'bou:t -
RODRIGYEZ, ESTHER, B.

-Author: SWANSON, NATALIE
Title: CHILD. DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANT

Bsther wasseenfor a well chifd:exan-at Pasitively Kids/Tompkins Clinic by Jennifer Douglas, PA-C on 10/1 3/2016. lmmumzatlons
glven: Influeniza, FOLLOW UR: 11/14£2006 at 5:00°-aud 1/16/2017 at 9:00:
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Contat With Contact Aboist
. ‘ROPRICUEZ, ESTHER, B.

Author: NELSON, BETH-ANN

= - Title; SOCIAL WORK SUPERVISOR. ‘ .

taans LN

Thils suporyisor'reviewed the Adoptlou Referval initlally-teceived on 2/2 1/17, fiom perinanency- worker, Kristina Quinten, and
Sypervisor, Taryn Lamalson,

intd-hel Ffoaier & o 919116, 'imuuclm%olhc
mm"mﬁ ‘i’s'.‘:schﬂd' mm for- m%acgg I"lemmer mng;m PSW m ericy advised hav'aﬁmmal m.mt
heeﬂidenﬁﬁ r&c necallwpumanency w ag:adv : dﬁt !
tns:melnmmto move t‘oﬁvafd advized that Gie s _qgi.

;t Before:the TPR, 50 h%:’elmcneedcdwﬁfomdg tlie swmsmey,..,ﬂ..., i yoty upfront-with
:they lalm; ﬂiﬂsfmonttn consndemi Mgm ha x;r;;rwed Cw“‘ﬂdmsw s s sl U e fose
- T8, e i) v Vo -an o FRliniEiRA 100 MUTIowN NHvas
“parenifs &t aikious o moveg ; for%?nt%.m ¥
Peimanénsy Rwiqwﬂmins-AWll*?anmuﬁn
Protective Custody: 72115 Clitk Chitody: 9N5N1S o
‘CAP- Raymond McKay -

“This Nofies of Eatry 6f Order for the Findings of Fact terminiating parental riphts as totis- mothier, Neilic Sasz and the father, John Doe
(wde Idémity of Bgina’s fatheris uuknoWlI).gsms iled oir 221717, Bhlberis 1§ lly freé for: atloplidns

TCWA Sistos - Not Appllcable - Chitd'reported to be. Hispanic.
“Flie Soslal Summarics provided 4ro- dated 1/2/7, as:completed by the permatiencyfout oi‘-homewufkw_._ Kristina Quinlan.
Reéfet for Sdrvice /- Ca%eAsﬁg@ﬁfém - Asiigried: toAdopﬂﬁt Sociat Worker Brian fous

.Nute‘!'me(s)_.... o — . - . o _ _ -
RELM‘WBCONTACT
TEM Asti
Contact- With. | " Coitsct Abat
RODRIGUBZ; ESTHER,.B.
SABZ,»NBLL]'E
Author: LAMAISON, TARYN

"Tiile: FAMILY SERVICES SPEC SUpY
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Spoke with Stepbmm andﬁguez, mnt@mul sedond ¢ougin to (he SHilt, Steptianicaskid s sicak with ma Suipkeryisor mumut me cnse

s know! Stephanie tod- i thi He.is .dgne with ihcfnsteteafeclmosm alioves that
e s contad Js‘ﬁ;{ 3&‘;.’?"a°m"‘.mm *m.m ed er Ao s, e i e
homcstuﬁyﬁ:nﬁ Aﬁpw‘ h}: hcﬂgi fﬁrl]seﬂ Lo bo s.priox Lo being reosl ueatqd
o o

it “MOD‘*mb“ythecmfwme%"pmm.but amegurmwmm'?%@ 1m_wmm$"%«wm Yodhe
- goticurventplan.if theAmﬂoncmt finalizé with the.cuwren wﬂrwt,mmﬁsi  will beairaiigo an ;shéandtbg.,, X
éhﬁdhayehﬁiimﬁ i iﬁilptotl&is‘T)oin ndihattlﬂﬂ,dﬁcs rmmh?f gymmmx Tt n
dIscuss 59| ML COUSR 4

mﬁ%mwﬁgmm‘:é% mn:?metdg g and.on W " ' vldtlie\molﬁer' e ‘!Y

6 C 8. on OK: Al
?lvhammlvem&umm@ nggﬁlg e il A ﬂgiéi‘exﬁll]ﬂcdﬂ,mlsﬂmeswm;s not

-alformby's eontact dpformitio
fo the.cag {his .x_ma’ﬂ centy ﬁamdﬂneheonﬂi ilfty. The reld
3‘:1%“&’60 avew, m%?é‘emqﬂ' i wwu-awﬂmmﬁ??m cl:fld.m
untyrin ehjld-is'born and ab Clatkg«&yﬂﬁa w
andl!mthhwvmﬁmhsuotomrred theadoptive

Ncle._-'lm ] s!'
‘SPYSYCONTACT

TCM Activity Typels)

REFERRAL

Gontast Wifh ' Contaet About |
S e - .. BODRIGUEZESTHER,B, _

Author: LAMAISON, TARYN )
Tltle. FAMILY SERV[GES SPBC surv:

tion retersal and socialsummary received and reviswed by supervisor, Child will'be adopled by foster parent, Refenal sent to
opitions supérvisot Bath-Aun Nelson.

Noto Type(s)
CHILOCONTACT

TCM Activity Type(s)
ASSESS NEEDS REASSESS NESDS

Contact With A : Contect About.
. RODRIGIEZ, BSTHER, B, RODRIGUEZ, ESTHER, B.

Author: QUINLAN, KRISTINA -
Title: TAMILY SBRVICES SPEC 1]
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. ;
I' feLark county | Electronically Filed !
9 EPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES : 01/30/2017 12:42:10 PM
- %= 1121 SOUTH MARTIN LUTHER KING BLVD. Lo ) e
8 VEGAS, NEVADA 89106 oo
3 ko2 ass-ras | o b u.r, |
4 : . CLERK OF THE COURT :
3 EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
6 FAMILY DIVISION - JUVENILE
) CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
8 {n the Matter of:
9 ESTHER-BELLA RODRIGUEZ COURT CASE NO.: J-15-337398-P1
Date of Birth: 08-15-2015 DEPT.: FAMILY JUVENILE
10 || AMinor 1 years, 07 Months of Age
11
12
REPORT FOR P NENCY A CEMENT
13 _
14 Date of Hearing: 02-07-2017
15 Time of Hearing: 01:30 PM
16 ' Courtroom: HM NORHEIM - #14
17 Attachment;
CONCERNING:
18 Hf
Mother:  NELUE SAEZ -
19 {| DoB: 03-17-1972 - .- R
P Address: Unknown
21 || Father:  UNKNOWN
DOB: '
22 §| Address:
23 “The Department learned In October 2016 that ESTHER has & half-sibling in
24 Slblings: the adoption process in Californla. ESTHER may have additional half-
siblings; !he,ir locations are unknown.
25 I ' - .
26 The inclian Child Welfare Act does not apply.
[] The indian Child Welfare Act does apply.
27 '
28
1
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NOTIFICATION OF HEARING AND TYPE OF SERVICE

2 I Mother:. -Not Applicable .
3 Father(s): Not Applicable '
Current Placement.  Via email and certified mail January 24, 2017
4 || CASA: Nat Applicable
Child’s Attorney., Via email and certified mail January 24, 2017
5 H Mother’s Altormney:  Not Applicable
5 Father's Attoray:  Not Applicable
Tribe: Not Applicable
7 REMOVAL DATE:
8 |1 July 27,2015
® | TRIAL HOME viSIT DATES:
10 §f Not Applicable
11 | eeacon EOR
12 || Wardship):
Petition No. 1 In this Matter cited:
13 (a) The mother to the minor child ls NELLIE SAEZ; the
14 father Is PEDRO RODRIGUEZ; e
15 (b) NELLIE SAEZ and PEDRO RODRIGUEZ wers the
persons diraetly responsible for the welfare of the
16 subject minor pursuant to NRS 4325.130 at the time of
removal; '
17 {c) PEDRO RODRIGUEZ neglacted the subjsat minor by
18 engaging In the use of Hlegal substances, which
rendered him unable fo provide care for the subject
19 minor when NELLIE SAEZ suffered a medical incident
that likewise renderad her incapable of caring for the
20 subject minor; PEDRO RODRIGUEZ admitted to regularly
using illegal substances, and named heroin as his drug
21 of choice; .
22 (d) PEDRO RODRIGUEZ lacks the resources to provide
0 for the health and safety of the subject minor;
(¢) PEDRO RODRIGUEZ falled to submit to drug testing
24 that was recommended by both CPS and the court;
25 (f) NELLIE S8AEZ lacks the resources to provide for the
health and safety of the subject minor;
26 () NELLIE SAEZ falled to submit to drug testing that
27 was recommanded by both CPS and the court;
' (h) The subject minor Is in need of protection in accordance with

NRS £32B.330 as a resulf of the abuse/neglect described above.

2
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1 B prEVIOUS C RDER DEEMED EFFORTS BY THE DEPAR
5 |l TO ACHIEVE THE PERMANENCY PLAN: |
[¥ Were Reasonable Efforts : For; ESTHER RODRIGUEZ
3 || O Were Not Reasonable Efforts - For:
4 || PERMANENCY GOAL AND PROJECTED DATE OF ACHIEVEMENT:
3 || O Reunfication | With:
6 DJ Termination of Parental Rights and Adoption By: Current Foster Placement
| Guardlanship By: -
7 ¥ [ Long Term Relative Placement With:
] Other Planned Permanent Living With:
8 || Arrangement
9 Projected Date of Achievament:
10 ONCURRENT PERMANENCY GOAL:
i; ] Reunification With:
11 Termination of Parental Rights and Adoption By:
[l Guardianship By:
12 Long Term Relative Placement With:
13 Other Planned Permanent Living With:
Arrangement

RATIONALE FOR PERMANENCY PLAN: .

ESTHER has been in care since July 27, 2015. MS8. SAEZ' parentai rights and
the rights of all potential fathers were terminated January 12, 2017. ESTHER
has resided in her cusrent foster placement since September 8, 2016. This -
placement is an adoptive resource. :

PARENTS' PROGRESS:

MS. SAEZ’ parental rights were terminated January 12,2017, .~ -~ =

20 I} Housing
a1 MS. SAEZ parental rights were terminated January 12, 2017.
2 Employment |

: MS. SAEZ’ parental rights were terminated January 12, 2017,
28 _

Counseling _

24 || msS. SAEZ' parental rights were terminated January 12, 2017.
25 || parenting 4 - |
26 || MS. SAEZ parental rights were terminated January 12, 2017.
27 I Other

The Depariment was contacted by MS, SAEZ first cousin regarding possible
placement of ESTHER in her home. An ICPC was submitted December 8,
2016 to the State of Georgia. The results are still pending. ~

3
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N 'S CURRENT P L |
{1..ESTHER Is placed In a licensed DFS Foster Home. She has rasided in thie
placément since September 9, 2016. She appears bonded to her foster
parents and comfortable in the home. : '

This placement Is not within cloge proximity to the pareht('s) for ESTHER
BELLA RODRIGUEZ,

This placementis the least restriciive for ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ.

CHILD(REN)'S WELL BEING:

. Education

ESTHER Is not of schoo) age. She attends daycare at Kiddie Academy
Mondays through Fridays from approximately 9:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m. each dey.

Placement

ESTHER Is placed in a licensed DFS Foster Home. She has resided in this
placament since September 8, 2016. She appears bonded to her foster
parents and comfortable in the home. This placement is an adoptive resource.

'Emotionam.':oumling -

ESTHER is not in need of counseling setvices at this fime. ESTHER hasa
good tempesament. She is a happy and loving child. ESTHER does appear to
‘have a slight delay in speech and a referral to Nevada Early Intervention
Services (NEIS) was submitted January 23, 2017.

MedicaliDental
ESTHER'S medical needs are met at Positively Kids. Her immunizations are

ourrant and ehe has no ongoing medical concerns at this time.

Safsty

20 || The Department conducts announced and unannounced home visits to
2 ESTHER'S foster care placement at least every thirly days. The Department
completes Permanency Services Placement Safety Checks and currently has
22 {| noconcems with regards to ESTHER'S current placement.
23 [ Peychiatric Sorvices - - _ '
o4 Is the child listed in report currently on any psychotropic medication?
No | |
3 Has a Court appointed a person to be legally responsible for the child's
26 peychiatric services? ' ' '
27 Not Applicable

When was the child's last appointment?  Not Applicable
When will the child have an appointment? Not Applicable -

4
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Tl

SiB ACT:

L_JPlaced Together o

"I Not Placed Together — The Depaitment learigd in October 2016 that
ESTHER has a hali-sibling In the adoption process in California. ESTHER may
have additional half-siblings; their locations are unknown.

Reasonable Efforts have been made In order to achieve Petrnanency for
ESTHER. These efforts include the following:

On behalf of the parents:

1. The Parental Rights were terminated January 12, 2017.

On behalf of the child(ren):
1. The Department conducts announced and unannounced home visits at

AN AL

O e 1 o ot B~ wm N

10 least every thirty days to ensure ESTHER'S safety and well-being and that
" her needs are being met.
2. The Department provided Medicaid for ESTHER.

12 lf 3. The Depariment ordered ESTHER'S medical records.

13 1 4. The Department updated ESTHER’S Soclal Summary.

14 || 5. The Department submitted an [CPC as to ESTHER'S matemal cousin.

15 8. The Department referred ESTHER to Nevada Early Intervention Services

(NEIS). : }

16 |} 7. The Depariment maintaing contact with ESTHER'S caregivers between in-

17 person visits to monitor her progress in placement and assist with referrals
as needed. :

18 |

19 . The Department will continue 1o conduct announced and unannéunced

20 home visits to ensure ESTHER'S safety and well-bsing and thet her needs

. are belng met. '
21 { 2. The Department will continue to order medical records and perform Sacial
22 Summary updates as to ESTHER. 7
3, The Department wili continue to make needed referrals for services for

23 || ESTHER. _

54 || 4 Permanency wil be established for ESTHER.

25

26

27

28

0069




O B N & th B W N =

gt etk gemb gt ek b ped ke
B w ON A W N e O

' WHEREFORE, DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES RESPECTFULLY

1 ' ) B =
BN RS RBNRES

UMMARY QMME NS:
ESTHER was hrought in to care July 27, 2015 and placed in Protective .

Custody due 10 conicems of abuse and neglect. ESTHER has resided In her™ — -~
current foster placement since September 9, 2018, This placementis an

adoptive resource. MS. SAEZ" parental rights and the rights of all potential -

fathers were teminated January 12, 2017. The Department was contectad by
ESTHER'S matemnal cousin in October of 2016 and an ICPC as to the cousin

was submitied December 8, 2016. The results of the ICPC are still pending.

The Department respectiully recommends that ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ
remain a Ward of the Court and placad in her current foster placement.

CHILD ORT:
Not Applicable

RECOMMENDS:

(1) That ESTHER BELLA RODRIGUEZ remain under the jurisdiction
of the Family Court and In the legal custody of the Clark County
: Department of Family Seivices; :
(2) Thatthe efforts made by the Department of Famlly Seivices are
found to he reasonable efforts as outlined in this report;
(3) That this matter be brought back for Formal Review in six months.

Submitted By:
A I > "
KRISTINA QUINCAN—/ TARYNL
CASE MANAGER
CLARK COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES

DATE: January 30, 2017
COURT CASE NO.: J-16-337398-P1

SITE: Central Perm .F -
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J-15-337398-P1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
- Juvenile Protection COURT MINUTES February 07, 2017
J-15-337398-P1 " Saez, Nellie, Mother
[February 07,2017 [1:30 PM  [Review Hearing |
HEARD BY: [Norheim, Jon [COURTROOM: |Courtroom 14 N
PARTIES:
State of Nevada: , Attomey: Sharp, Tanner L.,
Not Present: Rodriguez, Esther _Attorney: McKay, Raymond E.
|COURT CLERK: |Lillian Hillhouse _ |
| JOURNAL ENTRIES ]

(Bsther Rodriguez) Department of Family Services (DFS) reptesented by Kristina Quinlan.
 Foster parents present in the gallery. :

Ms. Quinlan reported that the matter has been referred to the adoption unit. A maternal cousin
has made contact with the Department and an ICPC has been initiated. '

Atty. McKay advised that the minor is doing well in placement.

" COURT FINDS, reasonable en‘forts have been met. COURT RECOMMENDED sub]ect minoy

s CONTINUED 0 jon abitsed / neglected mina al-custody
to the Department of Farmly services. PIacement in foster care. Permanency plan is Adoption.
Matter SET for REVIEW.

FUTURE HEARINGS:

08/08/2017 1:30 PM Permanency Planning Hearing
Courtroom 14 Norheim, Jon

Notice: Journal entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the official record of the Coust.
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. EXHIBIT 4




TO.WHOM (T MAY CONCERN:
. jamwriting oh behalf of Regina Ri\iéra, »’Eoster-Parent of Esther Rodiiguez.

1 have known Regina for over 12 years when'i first interviewed and hired heértobea part of thie Human
Resources Team for Skation Casinos. Regina has proven that she is an exceptional leader with exemplary
integrity, trustworthiness and shie continues to model our Company's standards.

Regina has her Masters in Organizational Mariageigrit, As a result of her education, experience and
exhiibited capabilities, 'proioted. Regina. multjple times in a vaflety of HR: potitions. She-has wotked at

. several of pur properties. Her most récent dssignment was tolead our Human Ressurcesoperations at
Graan Valley Rarch as ouf Diretor of Human Resources, one of our Company’s luxury properties-that
employ aver 1700 Team:Memibers. Regina led-the HR function at GVR for over-five years.

In 2016, Regina met. with me to discuss et future-with our Company, since she-was about to complete
her Foster parent training and was:anticipating welcoming a child into her family.. For all the years l.have

krown Reglria, she had dreamed of becoming a mother. Thiswas her number ohe prioxity and-asa
resulf, she needed to change her workife in order to properly focus on tier Family life.

After lengtpy:_emo;iqng] discussions, | encouraged Regina 1o  follow-her fieart.. Regina inftiaiy wanted to-
resign; but fortunately. Lhad ar’»‘bppbitj.i&iity within the Corporate HR degartivent thatwo uld et her
family life ieeds. Régina opted to voluritarify steg down:from befng.our. Human Resources Director at
Green Valley Ranch and agcepted the: position of Human Resources Manager:

 was thrilled o retaln Régina in our Corpany, whie dlso helping her achieve her life dreamtobea

miother.. Regina sacrificed her successful career and took.a step dowiny and also accepted a significanit
~ reduction i salary of $26,000, ‘I'h‘g-'re-. _is_a_)ii petter tngication that soindone’s ieart and soul ar& In the

right.place when theyare willing to personally compromise themselves in-order to enrch thielilife with

a beautiful child,

1505 5. PAVILJON CENTER DRIVE, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 8915 » TELEPHONE (702) 493-3000 » TOLL EREE: (866) 922:6777
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' As 3 mather of 3grown young ladies, F would entrust my childrén Inthe hands of Regina.anytithe-and |

am certain shie will confinue t provide Esthier with a magical fife filled with love, compassion, education

and puldance to-slso grow to.be a. beautiful'young lady avd contributo? fivour community.

 Should-you have any questions or need additional information, | avallable to-discuss-at 762-495-
3458, '

" Sincerely,

Valerle Murzl
Senlor Vice President of Human Resources/Trainitig
Statlon Casines, LLC

1505, South Pavillon:Center Brive

Las Vegas, Nv 80135
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Ivave know Regina-sincé | was borh. Shit I8 fiké a seconid inolher'to me, bahysitiing my
brotheraind | when we were younger. She is Kind, coffipassionele and drven. Thess oualities
make her the perfect mother: Herlave for Estha 1§ immiessusailis. Esthet {s a happy, stiong'and
Inteligent child and 1is s becaiise of the:lsve and care given to her by Regina and Phillip.
Everyime ) &ee Esther sh s fadiatf, she s 50 full of joy-ss/stie.plays with har foys.and
squeals I delight as s